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Introduction

Having the right number of skilled, trained
and supported staff, in the right place, at
the right time, and in the right roles, is
essential to providing high quality health
and care services, which address health
inequalities and encourage and support
people to take more responsibility for their
own health and well-being.

Over the last 12 months, we have
continued to develop the work we do,
supporting: '

e An excellent workforce
We have extended our work with partners
in areas such as attraction, recruitment and
retention, improving the employment
experience, and organisational and leadership development. For example, this year NES, along with
NHS Lothian, Grampian and Greater Glasgow & Clyde, has become a lead employer for doctors in
training, cutting the paperwork, administration time, and costs for doctors and NHSScotland, since
they no longer need to change employer every 6-12 months. We also continue to support the
expansion of undergraduate numbers and widening access to students from disadvantaged
backgrounds, with the launch of a pre-medical entry programme to support students to gain the
necessary experience and qualifications. In April 2018 Project Lift, a national talent management
methodology and a leading-edge approach to leadership development for aspiring Directors, was
launched. This supports staff at all levels to understand their leadership potential in terms of values,
ability, ambition and insight.

¢ Improved quality

Our programmes support health and social care staff to develop and improve the services they
deliver. Our range of Quality Improvement programmes provide skills, coaching and new techniques
for all kinds of staff, whether in clinical or non-clinical roles, at the start of a career or in a senior
position.

e New models of care -

We continue to develop competency and career development frameworks, accompanied by
educational resources that support staff to develop their careers, and to enhance their practice in
new and extended roles that support new models of care. This has included supporting pharmacists
and others to develop their skills to work in general practice.

e Enhanced educational infrastructure

At the request of Scottish Government, this year we established the NES Digital Service (NDS) to
develop a national digital platform, as set out in the Digital Health and Care Strategy for Scotland.
This aligns with the digital solutions we are already delivering to support workforce and business
services and the work we are leading to join up workforce supply side data and provide analysis to
inform workforce planning. During 2018/19 we launched Turas Appraisal, the replacement for the
electronic knowledge and skills framework (e-KSF) and Turas People which provides critical digital
infrastructure enabling the adoption of the Lead Employer model for doctors in training across
Scotland.
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e Animproved organisation

This year we have also worked with stakeholders to develop a new Strategic Plan for 2019-2024,
which articulates the contribution that we will make to ensure a skilled and sustainable workforce to
deliver service transformation and health and social care integration. This is available from our
Corporate Publications page at www.nes.scot.nhs.uk.

We believe that progress over the last 12 months, together with our new Strategy, will make an

important contribution to a high quality workforce and digital support for local, regional and national -
_health and care services. Through our leadership commitment and collaborative working we will

build on our past successes to help develop health and social care services fit for the future.

We are grateful for the very considerable contribution made by our staff, our board members, and

our stakeholders to ensure the continued success of NHS Education for Scotland (NES) in delivering
against its key objectives.

A v Y

David Garbutt Caroline Lamb
Chair Chief Executive
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Performance Report

1. Overview

NES is the national board with responsibility for education, training and workforce development for
those who work in, and with, health and care services in Scotland. Increasingly we have also
developed workforce and digital initiatives to support the workforce pressures faced by health and
social care.

How we work
Within our organisation we are structured into eight Directorates:

i Workforce
= Lead Employer Doctors and Dentists in Training
= National Educational Resources for Business & Administration
ond Estates & Facilities staff = Digital

National Support for Foundation, Modern and Graduate -
Apprenticeships » Digital development and delivery

Ledading cofluborative cross-sector work on a Digitally * Access to learning and development resgurtes ucrf)ss health and care
Enabled Workforce s Workforce data and intelligence and national statistics

« Maintenance and support of the organisation’s digital infrastructure
« Communications and digital design services

= National provision of workforce, business and administrative systems

Promoting careers and job opportunities - national digital
and media resources '

Hational approaches to leadership, management, * Information governance and security
organisational development, tralning and appraisal

Workforce Strategy, Planning and change

Workforce development, governance, diversit

and engagementp ¢ ¢ I NDS

* Development and provision of the
Nationa! Digitaf Platform
+ information access and capture at
the point of contact
o * Provision of timely, role-based access
to health and care information
» Research and Innovation to produce
and identify new products
- * Intelligence through better use and
joining up healthcare dato

B Finance and Procurement
= Financial controls and reporting
= Financial planning and budget
management

= Procurement

« Risk Management

= Operational costing and
efficlency

* Revente development

Educat
for / B planning and Corporate
Scotland / Resources
. » Strategic and operational :
planning
« Corporate performance
management

= Risk management
= Property and Facilities

148 Dentistry, Healthcare Sciences ; / fod A A i . g?gnaung‘:g:g:m AeTemen.
and Optometry - [__,1' ll"t,-)l | support
- Undergraduate placements in clinical settings '.._ . / i » Corporate governance
. of postgraduate training prog b Wi - » Feedback, Comments,
in dentistry in primary care and secondary care 2 e Concerns and Complaints
 Management of postgraduate training programmes in
healthcare science
Development of evidence based guidelines
* Management of training programmes for dental nurses Nursing, Midwifery, Allied Health Professionals
and therapists
L . and Psychology
+ Continuing professional development for dental reglstrants, I o] . nursing and midwifery
optometrists and healthcare scientists e & &l
gouppoiticidentalgEenisindificutty Postgraduate educational resources for nurses, midwives, allied health
professionals and heolth care chaplains
< National practice education infrastructure supporting nurses, midwives
and aliied health professtonals across the health and care workforce
C: issioning education progi and CPD
2 Medicine, Pharmacy, Quality Improvement and Patient Safety - Partnership working with SSSC across dementia, carers and integration
= Placements for undergraduates in clinical settings in acute and Educational resources and development for clinical support workers.
primary care Management of post-graduate education programmes In clinical
. of post-grad education programmes in medicine psychology
* Munagement of post-graduate education programmes in pharmacy. Delivery of training in psychological therapies and interventions
* Continued professional development for trained doctors and pharmacists Workforce devetopment for CAMHS
* Training of appraisers, support for and audit of revalidation Education to support suicide prevention

~ Support for doctors in difficulty

= Tralning of pharmacy technicians

» Tralning courses and resources in Quality Improvement and Patient Sofety
» Tralning courses and resources in Stmulation & Human Factors
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Our activities can be described under three main-headings:

1. Providing placement opportunities for undergraduate students, and recruiting and managing
progression through structured post-graduate training programmes;

2. Providing educational materials, resources and learning opportunities;

3. Provision of physical, people and digital infrastructures.

1) Providing placement opportunities for undergraduate students and recruiting and
managing progression through structured post-graduate training programmes

UNDE'E%%’::?#:\JIE B MEDICAL UGs 4462
" PLACEMENTS 5328 B DENTAL UGs 866
= UNDERGRADUATE
SUPPORT FOR EDUCATION These placements are funded by Medical and
UNDERGRADUATE SR Dental ACT (Additional Cost of Teaching).
EDUCATION PLACEMENTS
These figures are up fo tate as at May 2019
“ M MEDICAL, 5958
“ M DENTAL 299
POSTGRADUATE ~
EDUCATION M PSYCHOLOGY 250
PROGRAMMES 7196 ,
o : B PHARMACY 612
SUPPORT FOR POSTGRADUATE
POSTGRARUATE e M OPTOMETRY 60
EDUCATION PROGRAMMES PLACEMENTS
I PRE-REGISTRATION 17

HEALTHCARE SCIENTISTS

. ’ These figures are up to date as at May 2019

The expenditure relating to the above activities can be found in Note 4.
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2) Providing educational materials, resources and learning opportunities

We provide a range of educational resources and interventions which can be accessed in many
ways to support the health and social care workforce in formats that suit them:

MODES OF EDUCATION
AND TRAINING DELIVERY

PROVIDING EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS,
RESOURCES AND LEARNING
OPPORTUNITIES

ANIMATION WEBINAR eMODULES

FACE-TO-FACE

‘2.1) Face-to-face

We deliver many learning opportunities face to face. For example, we provide a growing range of
Quality Improvement training and leadership courses, designed to enable staff across the public
sector to meet the growing and changing demands that are placed upon them, delivering better
systems and better care for everyone.

QUALITY
IMPROVEMENT

PARTICIPANTS IN
Q! PROGRAMMES 2018/19

SCOTTISH COACHING AND
LEADING FOR IMPROVEMENT 2 10
PROGRAMME

SCOTTISH
IMPROVEMENT

SCOTTISH QUALITY AND -SIFS
32 SAFETY FELLOWSHIPS 9 5 (FOUNDATION LEVEL) 240 LEADERS
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2.2) Online

Through a blend of web-based resources, we continue to put information at users’ fingertips. This
year, we continued to deliver our Knowledge Network, while migrating more resources away from
separate websites to our one-stop digital platform, Turas (see 3.3).

THE KNOWLEDGE - O

NETWORK S o

USE OF SUBSCRIPTION

resources 1,300,076 1,281,393 1,527,543

JOURNAL ARTICLES DATABASE SEARCHES - VIEWS OF eBOOKS
DOWNLOADED CONDUCTED AND eBOOKS CHAPTERS
PRIOR YEAR (1,156,921) - {1,955,571) (2,052,653)

The rise in journal downloads, with a reduction in databases searches, is the result of an improved
Knowledge Network Library Search which is enabling users to find journal articles easier without the
need to use the databases. The reduction in eBook views is due to users preferring to access the
British National Formulary (BNF) via the mobile app rather than the website. Use of our other eBook
collections increased during the year. By delaying the collation of the statistics used above, our
suppliers have been able to provide us with more accurate usage numbers and as a result we have
been able to update the figures previously reported for 2017/18.

2.3) Animation

Animations are particularly effective in simplifying complex ideas and setting the tone for content in
a highly accessible way. Animated content is also extremely memorable, increasing retention as well
as engagement. Animations are a good example of micro learning helping busy staff to fit learning
into their working day.

2.4) Webinars

Webinars allow us to use technology to deliver learning across the country efficiently, eliminating the
cost of travel and supporting participants in remote and rural areas who otherwise might not be able
to access training at all. This year we delivered 83 webinars to 928 participants.

2.5) eModules

The use of eModules as a mode of delivering learning is steadily increasing. Their interactivity makes

them more attractive to many staff, and because they are delivered digitally, they allow easy
recording of learning credits.
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3) Provision of physical, people and digital infrastructures
3.1) Physical infrastructure

Although an increasing proportion of our work is delivered digitally, our bases across Scotland still
play an important role, providing training facilities and supporting training programme management.

INVERNESS
ABERDEEN |

Counoes |

NES REGIONAL OFFICE
LOCATIONS

GLASGOW Jfr

3 ® INVERNESS
| Centre for Health Science

1+~ -@ ABERDEEN

DENTAL EDUCATION Aberdeen Dental Education Centre (ADEC)
- CENTRES g{
! ® DUNDEE
P | Dundee Dental Education Centre (DDEC)
©® GLASGOW ' i

@ EDINBURGH

R DA N IO 4029 Edinburgh Dental Education Centre (EDEC)
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The Teach and Treat centres we support provide teaching opportunities for undergraduate and post
graduate practitioners. ‘ ‘

DENTAL
TEACH AND TREAT 1 7 '
CENTRES
PROVIDING TEACHING OPTOMETRY

OPPORTUNITIES FOR
UG AND PG PRACTITIONERS

3

These figures are up to date as at May 2019

Seee
eeee
eeee®
eeed®

We also support specialist clinical skills centres and provide a mobile unit which supports training in
remote and rural locations. This year we commissioned and took ownership of a new Mobile Skills
Unit, which supports training across the country. During 2018/19 the Unit facilitated the training of
1351 people (905 NHS staff; 369 public — mainly school pupils; 45 emergency services; 32 other).

&
*

1 NEW MOBILE
1UNIT

CLINICAL SKILLS

SPECIALIST CLINICAL SKILLS
CENTRES AND MOBILE UNIT

2 FIXED

CENTRES

@ DUNDEE
NINEWELLS HOSPITAL

- @ LARBERT
FORTH VALLEY ROYAL HOSPITAL
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13.2)

People infrastructure: Trainers and Educators

We have a network of staff who work for us across Scotland. These staff manage training _
programmes, facilitate placements, support practice education and provide an infrastructure to
ensure that our training meets regulatory requirements. '

NMAHP EDUCATION
NETWORK

WTEs WITHIN NMAHP
EDUCATION NETWORK

B NURSING AND MIDWIFERY
PRACTICE EDUCATION
FACILITATOR (PEF) 99.50

B NURSING AND MIDWIFERY
CARE HOME EDUCATION
FACILITATOR (CHEF) 14.00

M ALLIED HEALTH PROFESSIONAL
PRACTICE EDUCATION
LEAD (AHP PEL)

11.00

We provide support to nursing, midwifery and AHP undergraduate
students via our Practice Education infrastructure of Practice Education

Facilitators (PEFs) and Care Home Education Facilitators (CHEFs)

MEDICAL

TRAINING PROGRAMME
DIRECTORS

DENTAL

TRAINING PROGRAMME

DIRECTORS HEADCOUNT

38,‘TOTAL

These figures are up to date as at Moy 2019

e e e e sk ok e Aok ok

1 8 80882 08 8% 8 &8

1 8 88882808 88 ¢ 88

1 S 8. 8.8 6.8 88 8 8.8 8 8 ¢

b $ 858 68 08 88 884

1 8. £ 8.8 8.8 8.6 8.8 8688

1 8. $.0.8 8.8 6.4 8 8 868

**:**:***:::i*

L83 8.8.8 8 6 & ¢ Tk

Indinindnle ] EQUIVALENT TO
13.05

130 05 ;gSDSIONS

§
®
-
S
ag
]
£
R
=

1 SESSION = 4 HOURS

@
@
@
@

These figures are up to date as at May 2019

O®®
OOO®
UV

PO®
OO

OO®

By

IOV

OOO®
OOO®

-
-,

IG!ADWSORS (VT) 7’ADVISORS (CORE) 15| ADVISORS (SPECIALTY)

These figures are up to date as at May 2019

The Advisors (VT) support the one year Vocational Training programme which dental graduates must
satisfactorily complete to enable them to be eligible to work as an associate or principal in NHS
general dental practice. Advisors (Core) support trainees who successfully apply to enter the
Hospital and Public Dental Service through a core training placement. The Advisors (Specialty)
support dentists who are undertaking specialty training.

10
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3.3)  Digital Infrastructure

Our digital landscape continues to grow and benefit staff and patients, not just in Scotland, but
beyond. This year, at the request of Scottish Government, we established the NES Digital Service
(NDS) to develop a national digital platform for clinical data, creating the infrastructure for clinical
and patient-focussed applications. This aligns with the digital solutions we are already delivering to
support workforce and business services and the work we are leading to join up workforce supply
side data; and provide analysis to inform workforce planning.

TURAS DIGITAL PLATFORM
SECURE STAFF AND
WORKFORCE DATA

NATIONAL DIGITAL PLATFORM
SECURE CLINICAL AND
PATIENT DATA

HEALTH % BETTER . WORKFORCE STARF
MONITORING BOOKING AND PLANNING DEVELOPMENT
APPS COMMUNICATIONS TOOLS APPS
RECORDS LEARNING
ACCESSIBLE BY STAFF RESOURCES
AND PATIENTS

Turas, our staff and workforce focused digital platform, is accessible from any device, regardless of
employer, thereby enabling better integration of information and smarter working. All developments
are focused around the needs of the user.

In the last year we have successfully planned, built and rolled out the Turas Appraisal application,
allowing easier management of ongoing staff development, and created the digital infrastructure to
support the Lead Employer Programme. The Lead Employer model creates a single employer, for
medical trainees, for the duration of their training programme, creating efficiencies for NHSScotland
and improving the workplace experience for doctors, since they no longer need to change employer
every 6-12 months. We have also created a Talent Management Self-Assessment App on Turas, to
support Project Lift,

11
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3.3) Digital Infrastructure (continued)

The growing Turas application family:

177535
116470
42052
17331
12854
9733
7605
6599
6493
4574

TURAS
APPLICATIONS AND USERS

H APPRAISAL  LEARN I PORTFOLIO # TRAINING PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT
[ TURAS TRAINING PORTFOLIO WALES M NHS ePORTFOLIOS Il PEOPLE A
B TURAS TRAINING PORTFOLIO NORTHERN IRELAND [l 360 TOOL M PROJECT LIFT

The expenditure relating to all of the above activities is reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive
Net Expenditure and the notes to the accounts numbered 3 to 6 which are summarised below:

£'000
B STAFF COSTS 95 531

INCLUDING GP TRAINEES =

AND NES STAFF
EXPENDITURE
(PER NOTES 3 TO 6) M DIRECT EDUCATIONAL 352,371
y COSTS
SUMMARY STATEMENT TOTAL GROSS COSTS OF TRAINEES AND ACT
OF COMPREHENSIVE EXPENDITURE

I COST OF EDUCATIONAL 44,543

SUPPORT | .
SUPPORT ACROSS ALL STAFF GROUPS

EXPENDITURE

B NES SUPPORT COSTS 6,865

The Direct Educational Expenditure in Note 4 of £352,371k (2018: £336,111k) flows to Health Boards
and Medical and Dental General Practices. The expenditure relating to Educational Support in Note 5
of £44,543k (2018: £43,028k) is predominantly paid to NHSScotland health boards and Scottish
Universities. '

12



NHS Education for Scotland .Annual Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Developments in our Operating Environment

We are responsive to changes in our operating environment and in the last year continued to
develop our contribution to collaborative working, aligning with the 2016 Health and Social Care
Delivery Plan. :

As our role has grown to meet the increasingly challenging workforce pressures faced by health and
social care, this has been reflected in both our annual activity and in our recently published Strategic
Plan 2019-2024. ' :

NES has been at the heart of the National Boards’ Collaboration. We have been tasked, under the
National Workforce Plan for Health and Care, to deliver a workforce data platform, bringing together
the disparate sources of workforce data to produce a single source of supply side information.

This year, at the request of Scottish Government, we established the NES Digital Service (NDS) to
develop a national digital platform.

We have also extended our work with partners to improve the employment experience. For
example, this year NES, along with NHS Lothian, Grampian and Greater Glasgow & Clyde, has become
a lead employer for medical trainees for the duration of their training programme.

Key Issues and Risks

The NES Board maintains an overview of the main issues that impact on our operating environment
and the risks to the achievement of our organisational objectives, through considering our corporate
risk register as a standing item at each meeting of the Board. During 2018/19 we have continued to
focus on the strategic, operational, financial and governance risks. The main risks that have been
highlighted are around budget constraints, and in particular the increasing pressure to deliver more
with fewer resources. This relates to both internal cost pressures and the collaborative working by

‘National Boards to deliver additional savings. The risk register also reflects the context in which we
are operating and therefore reflects the challenges that are evident in recruiting and retaining
workforce in a number of key areas. This has included the potential impact of Brexit on the
attraction and retention of both undergraduate students and post graduate trainees.

Details of the performance of NES against our key non-financial targets is contained in section 2¢
(Page 17) of this report. Recruitment to Specialist Training in some key medical specialties, and some
geographies remains very challenging and this is reflected in the fill rates shown in the tables on
pages 21 and 23.

13
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2. Performance Analysis

NHS Education for Scotland measures performance against a varied set of key financial and non-

financial performance indicators.

-a) Financial Performance and Position
The Scottish Government Health and Social Care Directorate (SGHSCD) sets two budget limits and a
cash target at a Health Board level on an annual basis. These limits are:
e Revenue Resource Limit (RRL) - a resource budget for ongoing operations split between core
and non-core. Non-core is for accounting adjustments which do not require a cash payment,
such as depreciation or annually managed expenditure, where a provision is created for a
potential future liability. All other budgets are considered to be Core. Any underspend on
non-core RRL cannot be carried forward to future years. Further detail can be found in the
Summary of Resource Outturn. ‘ |
e Capital Resource Limit (CRL) — a resource budget for net capital investment, split between core
and non-core. In 2018/19 all the NES CRL was core: and
e Cash Requirement — a financing requirement to fund the cash consequences of the ongoing

operations and net capital investment.

The performance of NES against each of these limits is set out in the table below:

Variance

Limit as set Actual (Over)/

by SGHCD Outturn Under

£'000 £'000 £'000

Revenue Resource Limit - Core : 464,723 464,354 369
Revenue Resource Limit - Non Core 1,067 1,031 36
Total Revenue Resource Limit 465,790 465,385 405
Capital Resource Limit - Core 2,900 2,817 33
Cash Requirement 463,264 463,264 (0)

14
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Memorandum for In Year Outturn .

REPORTED SURPLUS IN 2018-19 405
APPROVED CARRY FORWARD SURPLUS FROM 2017-18 309
SURPLUS AGAINST IN YEAR TOTAL REVENUE RESOURCE LIMIT - 96

b) Summary of key items from the Financial Statements

Accounting Convention

The Annual Accounts and Notes have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to
reflect changes in the value of fixed assets and in accordance with the Financial Reporting Manual
(FReM). The Accounts have been prepared under a direction issued by Scottish Ministers, which is

reproduced at Page 57 to these accounts.

The statement of the accounting policies, which have been adopted by the organisation, is shown at
Note 1.

Going Concern Basis

Under these accounting arrangements, Health Boards must show liabilities for future years in their
accounts without showing funding antfcipated from the SGHSCD. This has resulted in net liabilities
on the Statement of Financial Position. The Statement of Financial Position reflects liabilities falling
due in future years that are expected to be met by the receipt of funding from the Scottish

Government. Accordingly, the accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Outstanding Liabilities
NES has recognised a dilapidation liability of £3,984k (2018: £4,213k) for leased premises. This
provision is based on the outcome of dilapidation assessments and relates to occupied premises in

Glasgow, Edinburgh, Aberdeen and Inverness. Further information is in Note 13a.

Legal Obligations _
There are currently 4 on-going legal cases which are reflected in the Accounts within the CNORIS
provision. CNORIS is the Clinical Negligence and Other Risk Indemnity Scheme on behalf of the NHS

" in Scotland. Further information on the £106k provision is in Note 13b.

Prior Year Adjustments

There are no prior year adjustments.

15
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Significant Changes in Non-Current Assets

Intangible:

NES has invested a further £2,397k in the development of Turas (the NES unified digital platform)
which forms the foundation of all NES’s future delivery of digital and information services. This has
enabled further development of existing Turas applications such as the Turas People application and
the development of new applications eg Turas Appraisal. Turas People supports the Lead Employer
model to enhance the employment experience of Doctors and Dentists in Training. Turas Appraisal
replaced eKSF across NHSScotland as the national electronic application for recording summaries of

annual Personal Development Planning and Review (PDPR) discussions.

Property, Plant and Equipment :

NES has invested £258k in the Mobile Skills Unit which allows a broad range of clinical skills to be
delivered across geographical and professional boundari-es. NES has also invested in new video
conferencing equipment and an additional air conditioning unit to support the resitience of the IT

server environment.

Pension Liabilities
The accounting policy note for pensions is provided in Note 1 and disclosure of the expenditure is

shown within Note 15 and the Remuneration Report.

Post Statement of Financial Position Items

There are no post Statement of Financial Position items

Impact of Lead Employer Arrangements
NES has become one of four lead Employers for all Doctors in Training within NHSScotland. While
having previously employed GP Trainees whilst they were in a practice placement, now GP Trainees

are employed by NES for the duration of their training programme, including hospital placements.

The impact of this is reflected in the SoCNE in staff expenditure and income. The expenditure
relating to GP Trainees whilst they are in a hospital placement is recharged to the Placement Health
Board. This has led to an increase in staff expenditure of approximately £24m, which is offset by an

increase in income from NHSScotland bodies. We are also reporting an increase in staff composition.

16
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c) Performance Against Key Non-Financial Targets

Payment Policy
The Board is committed to working with the Scottish Government to support businesses in the
current economic climate by paying bills more quickly. The intention is to achieve payment of all

undisputed invoices within 10 wofking days, across all public bodies.

Actual performance in respect of non-NHS Trade Creditors is reported in the table below:

NON-NHS SUPPLIERS 2017/18 2018/19
AVERAGE CREDIT TAKEN ’ 10 days 10 days
% OF INVOICES (BY VALUE) PAID WITHIN 30 DAYS 94% 91%
% OF INVOICES (BY VOLUME) PAID WITHIN 30 DAYS 95% 95%
% OF INVOICES.(BVY VALUE) PAID WITHIN 10 DAYS 79% 79%
% OF INVOICES (BY VOLUME) PAID WITHIN 10 DAYS 86% 88%

Staff Engagement and Staff Governance
The Employee Engagement Index, which is generated from the annual staff survey “iMatter”, is the

key performance measure in this area. It aligns with the Staff Governance Standard i.e. Well
Informed, Appropriately Trained, Treated Fairly and Consistently, Involved in Decisions and operating
within a Health, Safety and Wellbeing environment. The diagram below highlights performance

across all areas for 2018/19. Each element shows an improvement from 2017/18 results.

17
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NES iMatter: employee response rate, employee eng

agement index score and action plans agreed

N

14%

iMATTER
NES QUTCOMES 2018
RESPONSE EMPLOYEE ACTION NO
RATE ENGAGEMENT [l  PLANNING REPORTS
INDEX
iMATTER
eI R A SIS 2 RESPONSE EMPLOYEE ACTION
RATE ENGAGEMENT [l  PLANNING REPORTS
INDEX
*response rate was below
60% reporting threshold

NES continues to score well for iMatter outcomes, compared to NHSScotland average.

NES Core Staff Absence by Quarter during 2018/19 (this excludes GP Trainees)

Absenceby Quarter and Fisc! Year

3.00%
Jel 2.69%
bl
: 2.56%
i ~ J
2.50% 2.64% 267% \1-
: 247%
1.69%
2.00% -
1.79%
1.50%
a1 at 2 Qr 3 atré
g 2017/18  —p—~2018/19

Our absence rates remain fairly steady at an average of 2.44% for 2018/19 which compares favourably to

the NHSScotland average of 5.39%.

18
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NES Essential Learning Completion Rates in 2018/19

Staff are encouraged and supported to ensure they invest in their own personal development as well
as those areas which are considered essential learning. The uptake levels across those essential
learning programmes are noted below:

Essential Learning Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19
Counter Fraud 89% 91% 90% 87%
Equality & Diversity 90% 87% N/A N/A
Health & Safety 57% 60% 67% 63%
Information Governance 79% 81% 83% 80%

The Equality & Diversity essential learning module was decommissioned in Q3 2018/19 and a new
module launched in May 2019. Al staff are required to complete the new module within 4 months

of launch.

Health & Safety rates show a decrease compared to prior year, however on investigation it was
established that the functionality of automatic alerts was not operating effectively. Actions were
agreed to improve systems functionality, reporting and follow up within teams. Performance in
2018/19 did show improvement and this will continue to be robustly monitored by the Staff
Governance Committee during 2019/20.

Social Matters

As a public body NES’s requirements in respect of Social Responsibility are encompassed within the
Scottish Government’s Fair Work Requirements and are reflected in our education delivery and
application of the Staff Governance Standard. NES is committed to applying the highest standards of
~ ethical conduct and integrity in its business activities. Every employee and individual acting on NES's
behalf is responsible for maintaining the organisation's reputation and for conducting NES business
honestly and professionally.

NES considers that bribery and corruption have a detrimental impact by undermining good
gdvernance. Transparent, fair conduct helps to foster trust between NES and our partners, and is
vital for our reputation and future growth. NES has issued revisions to the Standards of Business
Conduct Policy, incorporating Hospitality Guidance, which outlines our position in relation to
pr'eventing and prohibiting bribery, and reporting suspected instances of bribery.

Sustainability and Environmental Reporting

The Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 set outs measures adopted by the Scottish Government to
reduce emissions in Scotland by at least 80% by 2050. In 2015, an Order was introduced requiring all
designated Major Players (of which NES is one) to submit an annual report to the Sustainable
Scotland Network detailing compliance with the climate change duties imposed by the Act. The
information returned by the Board is compiled into a national analysis report, published annually and
superseding the prior requirement for public bodies to publish individual sustainability reports. NES
submitted a report in September 2018 outlining performance against several key indicators in
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2018/19, which will be published on the Sustainability Action website in 2019. Further information
on the Scottish Government’s approach can be found in the Climate Change Plan 2018-2032 while
national reports can be found at the following resource: http://sustainablescotlandnetwork.org.

d) Performance Against Key Operational Targets during 2018/19

Operational Performance Management

For 2018/19, the NES Board agreed our Local Delivery Plan and detailed operational plan. The
detailed plan for 2018/19 contained 484 performance targets, of which 57 were designated as

priority targets. Achievement of these targets is monitored through an integrated planning and

performance management system, where all targets are linked to one of the NES five strategic

themes set out in our Strategic Framework 2014-19. Performance updates are provided on a

- quarterly basis and reported to the Finance and Performance Management Committee and the NES
Board. The 2018/19 targets by strategic theme are shown below.

PRIORITY TARGETS

SUMMARY BY
STRATEGIC THEME

ALL TARGETS

SUMMARY BY
STRATEGIC THEME

AN EXCELLENT WORKFORCE

L4 ® NOTCOMPLETED 2

21 PARTIALLY COMPLETED | 2
» ACHIEVED " 17
NEW MODELS OF CARE
y; @ NOT COMPLETED ' 0
8 PARTIALLY COMPLETED | 1
: ACHIEVED 7

ENHANCED EDUCATIONAL
INFRASTRUCTURE
® NOT COMPLETED 0

PARTIALLY COMPLETED i1
ACHIEVED ' 10

11

AN EXCELLENT WORKFORCE
¥

® NOT COMPLETED | 4

97 PARTIALLY COMPLETED | 9
ACHIEVED | 84
NEW MODELS OF CARE
- K

. ® NOT COMPLETED |6
PARTIALLY COMPLETED | 13

N118)
. ACHIEVED | 99

ENHANCED EDUCATIONAL
INFRASTRUCTURE

{4 @ NOTCOMPLETED |0
| (112 PARTIALLY COMPLETED|12
L 4 © ACHIEVED| 100

20

IMPROVED QUALITY

P @ NOTCOMPLETED |0
| 5 | PARTIALLY COMPLETED:0O
U 4 ©ACHEVED:S

‘AN IMPROVED ORGANISATION

#y o noT COMPLETED |1
12 PARTIALLY COMPLETED | 1
ACHIEVED | 10

TOTAL PRIORITY TARGET

PERFORMANCE

= ® NOT COMPLETED|3

o=
57 PARTIALLY COMPLETED &
| ACHIEVED | 49
IMPROVED QUALITY
® NOT COMPLETED |0
62 PARTIALLY COMPLETED | 4
ACHIEVED | 58

AN IMPROVED ORGANISATION

f y 4 ® NOT COMPLETED |4

o 95 PARTIALLY COMPLETED | 10
] g ACHIEVED | 81

TOTAL

TARGET PERFORMANCE

f . ® NOT COMPLETED | 14
p4asq PARTIALLY COMPLETED | 48

L ACHIEVED { 422



NHS Education for Scotland Annual Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

During 2018/19, 422 (87%) of all targets were achieved, 48 (10%) were partially completed and 14
(3%) were not completed. Within the priority targets during 2018/19, 49 (86%) priority targets were
achieved, 5 (9%) priority targets were partially achieved and 3 (5%) priority targets were not
achieved. '

Of the three priority targets that were not achieved, one relates to the collaborative property and
facilities management (PFM) services review being developed across national boards. This work is
ongoing, but the scope and timescales have evolved and the specific target set at the start of the
year has been superseded. The second priority work target not achieved relates to Dental Core
Training, where there has been difficulty recruiting to some Dental Core Training Posts. This mirrors
the situation in other pafts of the UK'and has resulted in changes to the configuration of a number of
Scottish posts for 2019/20, in an effort to make them more attractive. The third target relates to the
training of specialty training grade dentists, where 43 have completed their training, against a target
of 45, ‘

Of the remaining work not achieved during 2018/19, two finance targets to develop a finance
information strategy and monthly training grade trend analysis reports have been delayed due to
staff recruitment challenges. Two medical targets relating to the GP returners programme fell short
of target, with lower than expected numbers attending the returners programme and completing
enhanced induction. Another medical target to provide consistent training to nurses and doctors
working in custody environments in Scotland has been significantly delayed due to recruitment
difficulties. An element of PFM work that was not completed is the development of a new digital
service desk and room booking system with remote access for all sites. A strategic decision was
made to change the service provider for this work due to licence changes. An alternative
arrangement which still allows users remote access is now being progressed.

The following key non-financial targets reflect the main areas of NES activity as outlined in the
Performance Report Overview.,

i) Recruitment To and Progression Through Key Training Programmes

As detailed in note 4 of the Annual Accounts, £253m of the NES budget directly supports post
graduate training across Scotland.

NES works with Scottish Government and NHSScotland boards to increase the attractiveness of
Scotland as a training location. This year NES, along with NHS Lothian, Grampian and Greater
Glasgow & Clyde, has become a lead employer for medical trainees for the duration of their fraining
programme, cutting the paperwork and costs for doctors and NHSScotland, since they no longer
need to change employer every 6-12 months.

% Posts filled

Posts Posts N
MEDICAL TRAINING GRADES A er e e or e % Accepted ag.:amst
establishment
RECRUITMENT TO FOUNDATION 850 830 98% 98%
RECRUITMENT TO CORE TRAINING 337 312 93% 97%
RECRUITMENT TO SPECIALIST TRAINING 838 687 82% 96%
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NHS
Ny et

Education
for

T 1128

Scotland

e ST 1184
DOCTORS IN TRAINING

TRAINEES PER
EMPLOYING BOARD
AUGUST 2018 2377
R Y S ] 1248
NHS AYRSHIRE AND ARRAN 254
. lNHS BORDERS 76
[ 145 DUMFRIES AND GALLOWAY 73
: NHS EDUCATION FOR SCOTLAND 676
DOCTORS IN TRAINING v f s Fiee 216
TRAINEES PER y [ s FoRTH vALLEY 203
PLACEMENT BOARD ¢ [ NHS GRAMPIAN e S8
AUGHST, 2018 - s GREATER GLASGOW AND CLYDE 1659
l NHS HIGHLAND 151
2 | NHS LANARKSHIRE 385
'3‘7 [ s Lomhian : 1075
4 NATIONAL TIMES WAITING CENTRE 20
I NHS ORKNEY 2
3 NHS SHETLAND 7
I NHS TAYSIDE ; 542
NHS WESTERN ISLES 10
STATE HOSPITAL %

This year we have been working with the British Medical Association (BMA), Boards and Scottish
Government on working groups and initiatives to increase flexibility and wellbeing and reduce
fatigue. These are due to report in 2019.

We continue to support the expansion of undergraduate numbers and widening access to students
from disadvantaged backgrounds. This year saw the launch of a pre-medical entry programme to
support students to gain the necessary experience and qualifications. The graduate entry programme
(ScotGEM) which launched in 2017 now has a ‘return to service’ bursary available to students from
autumn 2018.
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Within Dentistry, graduates must satisfactorily complete a one year VT programme to enable them
to be eligible to work as an associate or principal in NHS general dental practice. The target for
vocational training is to provide a sufficient number of places which at least matches the output of
the dental schools in Scotland where those students wish to train in Scotland. In 2018/19 166 trainee

places were provided in line with the demand.

After vocational training dentists can progress to dental core and then to specialty training. NES also
provides training for dental nurses and funds training for dental therapists. '

DENTAL TRAINING GRADES Target Actual % Achieved
RECRUITMENT TO DENTAL CORE AND SPECIALTY TRAINING 139 125 90%
PRE-REGISTRATION TRAINING FOR DENTAL NURSES 160 98 61%
DENTAL HYGIENE/THERAPY STUDENTS 45 41 91%

NES is responsible for the pre-registration training of psychologists for the NHS in Scotland and has a
commissioning and direct delivery role.

CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGY Target Actual % Achieved
CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGIST TRAINEES' COMPLETION _ v 55 53 - 96%
PSYCHOLOGICAL THERAPIES IN PRIMARY CARE 30 29 97%
APPLIED PSYCHOLOGY FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE - 19 18 95%
NEUROPSYCHdLOGY PROGRAMME 35 35 100%

Clinical Scientists are postgraduate scientists across a range of disciplines in diagnostic laboratories,
medical physics and clinical physiology.

HEALTHCARE SCIENTISTS Actual % Achieved
PRE-REGISTRATION CLINICAL SCIENTISTS _ 17 17 100%
POSTGRADUATE SCIENTISTS IN SERVICE 30 31 103%

In Scotland there is currently a 4-year degree programme for Pharmacy which must be followed by a
pre-registration year. Successful completion of this pre-registration year and passing the General
Pharmaceutical Council (GPhC) registration assessment allows registration as a Pharmacist.

PHARMACY Target Actual % Achieved

PRE-REGISTRATION PHARMACY
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ii} Providing Educational Resources and Learning Materials

The activities detailed below provide an indication of the range of resources developed to meet key
performance targets in this area.

e We provided 23,000 hours of verifiable Continuing Professional Development (CPD) for the
dental team; _

e We trained a further 103 pharmacists in advanced practice to suppf)rt General Practice;

e We provided 279 sessions of in-practice quality improvement training for dental teams;

e We trained 120 new health visitors;

e We supported 106 pharmacists on independent prescribing courses;

e We delivered on the commitment to an additional 500 Advanced Nursing Practitioners with
650 enrolled on the postgraduate diploma;

e We delivered training in Psychological Therapies and Interventions to 953 multidisciplinary
staff in children’s services and over 1260 multidisciplinary staff in adult services;

e We launched the Opening Doors: Trauma Informed Practice for the Workforce animation in
June 2018 and since then the animation has been viewed over 16,000 times;

e We continued to monitor the utilisation of £7m of Scottish Government funding awarded to
Scottish Health Boards to increase access to Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services
(CAMHS) and Psychological Therapy Services; ‘

e We delivered a standardised Psychology‘of Parenting Programme (PoPP) scheme start-up
training to 39 PoPP multi-sector Early Years’ practitioners and provided authorised Incredible
Years Pre-school Basic or Level 4 Group Triple P training for 82 practitioners. An additional
373 practitioners across the wider children and families workforce received training in
Connecting with Parents’ Motivations in 2018/19; and

e Ina UK first, a Scottish trainee has become the first Health and Care Professional Council
(HCPC) approved Podiatrist to successfully complete doctoral level education in Podiatric
Surgery.

Some of these achievements, such as additional pharmacists trained in advanced practice, will also
provide staff with additional skills to support service redesign.

iii) Providing National Infrastructure

The infrastructure provided by NES has 3 different elements; physical, people and digital. Some of
the key activities which supported the delivery of targets in this area for 2018/19 are detailed below:

Physical Infrastructure

e We provided learning and training oversight and services across Scotland through our offices
in Inverness, Aberdeen, Dundee, Edinburgh and Glasgow;

e We supported 17 dental and three optometry Teach and Treat centres, providing teaching
opportunities for undergraduate and post graduate practitioners; and

e We supported two specialist clinical skills centres and commissioned and took ownership of a
new Mobile Skills Unit, which enabled training in remote and rural locations.
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People Infrastructure

Our network of staff across Scotland manage training programmes, facilitate placements, support
practice education and provide an infrastructure to ensure that our training meets regulatory
requirements.

e In 2018/19 we supported 99.5 WTE Nursing and Midwifery practice Education facilitators, 14
Nursing and Midwifery Care Home Education Facilitators and 11 Allied Health Professional
Practice Education leads; | '

® Our Medical Training Programme Directors (TPD) delivered 130.5 TPD sessions, equivalent to
13.05 WTE posts; and

e Qur 38‘dentaI'Training Programme Directors include Dental Vocational Training Advisors,
who support the one year VT programme which dental graduates must satisfactorily
complete to enable them to be eligible to work as an associate or principal in NHS general
dental practice. Advisors (Core Training) support trainees who successfully apply to enter -
the Hospital and Public Dental Services through a core training placement.

Digital Infrastructure

NES has continued to invest in the development of Turas (the NES unified digital platform) which
forms the foundation of all NES’s future delivery of digital and information services. Many of the
targets achieved support either the Health and Social Care delivery plan or the National Health and
Social Care Workforce Plan (Part 1).

*  We further developed Turas People in 2018/19 to support the lead employer model for
doctors in training by joining up the training and employment journey. The application
enables engagement and change information to be completed and shared electronically.
Employment related information, including contractual documentation, can be issued,
accepted and stored in one place. These developments in Turas People have reduced the
employment related administration for the doctors in training and also for users across
NHSScotland Boards in medical staffing/ human resources, payroll and occupational health;

¢ Turas Appraisal, which replaced eKSF, across NHSScotland, as the national electronic
application for recording summaries of annual Personal Development Planning and Review
(PDPR) discussions was launched in April 2018 and has been used by over 102,000 Agenda
for Change and Executive Cohort staff to support their personal development planning and
review process;

® Turas Learn, the NES platform for learning and support resources, provides NHSScotland
health and social care staff with access to learning and practice support resources. All NES,
NHS Grampian, NHS24 and NHS Shetland learning modules are now available on Turas Learn
along with course booking functionality, with an agreement drawn up to facilitate the sharing
of modules across learning management systems. Turas Learn now has 116,000 registered
learners with the system being accessed around 10,000 times per week;

* We created the Turas Data Intelligence platform that allows for the ingestion, categori‘sation',
transformation, analysis and reporting of data across the public sector in Scotland. This has
enabled the programme of work to join up workforce supply side data and provide analysis’
to inform workforce planning;
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e We have started to leverage the capabilities of Office 365 to create servites which add value
to our staff, such as building our NES annual leave process on Office 365, allowing staffto
easily request leave and managers to approve leave while making reporting easy;

e Despite challenges brought on by price increases and changes to VAT regulations we have
continued to provide an excellent range of resources on the Knowledge Network for health
and care staff with over 1.3m journal articles downloaded, 1.2m database searches
conducted and 1.5m views of eBooks; and

e We continue to collaborate with colleagues in other public sector organisations, sharing our
experience, technology and products to support digital transformational activity across
organisational boundaries.

All of the work described has been achieved within the financial limits set by the Scottish
Government, which is due to the continued commitment and dedication of our staff. Our staff

engagement scores and absence rates indicate that people find NES a rewarding place to work. As
- Chief Executive, | am content with the performance of the organisation during 2018/19.

— :
C/‘E;LM@L%{ ey

Chief Executive
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Accountability Report

1. Corporate Governance Report

a) Directors’ Report
Date of Issue

Audited financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 27 June 2019.

Appointment of Auditors

The Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 places personal responsibility on the.
Auditor General for Scotland to decide who is to undertake the audit of each health body in Scotland.
The Auditor General appointed Grant Thornton UK LLP to undertake the audit of NHS Education for
Scotland for the financial years 2016/17 to 2020/21. The general duties of the auditors of health
bodies, including their statutory duties, are set out in the Code of Audit Practice issued by Audit

Scotland and approved by the Auditor General for Scotland.
Board Membership

Under the terms of the Scottish Health Plan, the Board of NES is a Board of governance whose
membership will be conditioned by the functions of the Board. Members of Health Boards are
selected on the basis of their position or the particular expertise which enables them to contribute to

the decision-making process at a strategic level.

The Board has collective responsibility for the performance of the organisation as a whole, and

reflects the partnership approach, which is essential to achievement of the organisation’s objectives.
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Non Executive Board Members

DATE OF

NAME POSITION APPOINTMENT
MR D GARBUTT Chair Apr-18
MS C WILKINSON Vice Chair {Retired May-18) Jun-10
MS E FORD Employee Director Apr-08
MS S DbUGLAS-SCOTT Member (Resigned May-18) Jun-10
MR D HUTCHENS Member Mar-15
DR D STEELE Member and Vice Chair from Oct-18 May-13
MS S STEWART Member (Resigned Jun-18) Mar-15
DR A TANNAHILL Member May-13
MRS L DUNION Mgmber Jun-18
MS A WALKER Member ) . Jun-18
MS A CURRIE Member Sep-18

Executive Board Members

DATE OF
NAME POSITION APPOINTMENT

MS C LAMB Chief Executive Oct-15

Deputy Chief Executive and

PRO INE
S Director of Medicine

Apr-12

MRS A MCCOLL - Director of Finance Feb-16

Director of Nursing, Midwifery & Allied
MRS K WILSON . : Jan-18
Health Professions.
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b) Statement of Board Members’ Responsibilities

Under the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978, the Board is required to prepare accounts in
accordance with the directions of Scottish Ministers which require that those accounts give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Board as at 31 March 2019 and of its operating expenditure

for the year then ended.

In preparing these accounts the Members are required to:

* Apply on a consistent basis the accounting policies and standards approved for the NHSScotland
by Scottish Ministers;

* Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e State where applicable accounting standards as set out in the FReM have not been followed
where the effect of the departure is material; and

e Prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Board will continue to operate.

The Board members are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are maintained

which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Board and enable
them to ensure that the accounts comply with the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978 and
the requirements of the Scottish Ministers. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the Board and hence taking reasonable steps for the prevention of fraud and other irregularities.

The NHS Board members confirm they have discharged the above responsibilities during the financial

year and in preparing the accounts.

Board Members’ and Senior Managers’ Interests

Details of any material interests of board members, senior managers and other senior staff in
contracts or potential contractors with the organisation, as rec}uired by IAS 24 “related party

disclosures” are disclosed in Note 17.

A register of interests is maintained and can be viewed at www.nes.scot.nhs.uk

Remuneration for Non-Audit Work

There was no such work performed in the year by the appointed auditor.

Public Services Reform (Scotland) Act 2010

The information which requires to be published under this Act for 2018/19 can be accessed at

www.nes.scot.nhs.uk from 31 October 2019.
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Personal Data Related Incidents ‘

On 31st July 2018, NES was made aware that a Customer List, which included customer name and
contact address details, was inadvertently made available on the NES intranet. This included 393
individuals whole personal home address details had potentially been disclosed. The document was
immediately removed from the intranet/internet. The incident was reported to the Information
Commissioner’s Office (ICO) and letters were sent to all impactéd individuals. NES was notified on
the 21st March 2019 by the 1CO, that on consideration of the information provided, no further action
by the ICO was necessary.

Disclosure of Information to Auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as
they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Board’s auditors are
unaware; and each director has taken all the steps that he/she ought reasonably to have taken as a
director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the

board’s auditors are aware of that information.

c) Statement of Chief Executive’s Responsibilities as the Accountable

Officer

Under Section 15 of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act, 2000, The Principal
Accountable Officer (PAO) of the Scottish Government has appointed me as Accountable Officer of
NHS Education for Scotland.

This designation carries with it responsibility for:

e The propriety and regularity of financial transactions under my control;
e The economical, efficient and effective use of resources placed at the Board’s disposal; and

e Safeguarding the assets of the Board.

In preparing the Accounts | am required to comply with the requirements of the Government’s FReM

and in particular to:

e Observe the accounts direction issued by the Scottish Ministers including the relevant accounting
and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;

e Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

e State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Govérnment’s FReM have been
followed and disclose and explain any material departures; and

e Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis.
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I confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts as a whole are fair, balanced and reasonable and take
personal responsibility for the Annual Report and Accounts and the judgements required for

determining that it is fair, balanced and understandable.

I'am responsible for ensuring proper records are maintained and that the Accounts are prepared
under the principles and in the format directed by the Scottish Ministers. To the best of my
knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged my responsibilities as Accountable Officer as

intimated in the Departmental Accountable Officer’s letter to me of the 9" August 2016.

d) Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As Accountable Officer, | am responsible for maintaining an adequate and effective system of
internal control that supports compliance with the organisation’s policies and promotes achievement
of the organisation’s aims and objectives, including those set by Scottish Ministers. Also, | am

responsible for safeguarding the public funds and assets assigned to the organisation.
Purpose of Internal Control

The system of internal control! is based on an ongoing process designed to identify, prioritise and
manage the principal risks facing the organisation. The system aims to evaluate the nature and

extent of risks, and manage risks efficiently, effectively and economically.

DEALING
IDENTIFY Wi RISk PRIORITISE

NATURE ™ EVALUATING EXTENT

The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve the organisation’s aims and objectives. As such, it can only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance.
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The process within the organisation accords with guidance from Scottish Ministers in the Scottish
Public Finance Manual (SPFM) and supplementary NHS guidance, and has been in place for the year

up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

The SPFM is issued by Scottish Ministers to provide guidance to the Scottish Government and other
relevant bodies on the proper handling and reporting of public funds. The SPFM sets out the relevant
statutory, parliamentary and administrative requirements, emphasises the need for efficiency,

effectiveness and economy, and promotes good practice and high standards of propriety.
Operation of the Board

NHS Education for Scotland has in place a comprehensive corporate governance framework, which

includes the following elements:

z/' b
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MEASUREMERNT

Comprehensive Structures

e Aclearly articulated strategic framework which sets and communicates the Board’s vision and
intended outcomes covering the period 2014-2019; supplemented by detailed annual local
delivery plans all of which are made available to our stakeholders;

e Aswe transition into a new strategic planning period, a clearly articulated Strategic Plan which
sets and communicates the Board’s vision and intended outcomes covering the period 2019-
2024;

e A performance management framework, which records progress against key performance
indicators for each planned objective, and which is used to produce regular reports to the Board

and the Finance and Performance Management Committee;
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® Aclearly articulated Educational Governance Framework which is used to assure the quality of
the educational services that we provide and is overseen by the Educational and Research
Governance Committee;

® Anestablished structure of standing committees of the Board with clearly defined remits
including Staff Governance, Remuneration, Educational and Research Governance, Finance and
Performance Management, and Audit Committees. In relation to the Remuneration Committee,
details of the membership and attendance are contained within the Remuneration Réport.
Details of the membership of all other Committees, their attendance record and coverage of
work is contained in the Governance Framework section of this report; and

® The creation of an additional sub-committee of the Board (Digital) to provide appropriate
governance arrangements for the NES Digita] Activities. This has included the co-opting of
committee members with significant expertise in Digital development and implementation at

scale.
Clear Policies and Procedures

¢ Clear definition of the roles and responsibilities of the Board and the scheme of delegation set
out in Standing Orders which are reviewed and updated on a regular basis;

¢ Comprehensive Standing Financial Instructions and Procurement policies and procedures which
are regularly reviewed and updated;

e A Risk Management Strategy and sdpporting procedures which define how decisions are taken
and how associated risks are managed. These are regularly reviewed and updated;

* Clear whistle-blowing and complaints policies with annual reporting of complaints to the Board,
and with follow up of recomrﬁendations arising from complaints also being reported to the Audit

- Committee; . o

* Policies and procedures to manage compliance with relevant laws, regulations and internal
arrangements;

* The existence of clear channels of communication with all stakeholders including Strategic
Liaison and Performance Management meetings with the SGHSCD; fortnightly meetings between
the Chief Executive of NES and the other National and Regional implementation leads, senior
managers involvement in communication and engagementvlinks with Health Boards; Royal
Colleges and Regulators; and regular mee;cings with other stakeholders such as the SFC and SSSC;
and

e Joint Action plans agreed in respect of partnership working with key partners such as the SFC and
the SSSC.

Effective Measurement

* Reliable data from key information systems, which are subject to regular reconciliation, integrity
checking and audit; enabling management of the financial resources, human resources and
performance of the organisation;

e Regular reports, including the minutes, are sent to the Board from the Chairs of all standing

committees after each meeting. A corhprehensive annual report from each Committee
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describing how it has discharged its remit during the year, the impact its work has had on the
organisation and identifying areas for development is considered by the Audit Committee as part
of its review of the whole system of internal control;

e A process of Board self-assessment using the National Self-assessment Survey. This focused on
how well the Board currently delivers the five functions of governance defined in the ‘Blueprint
for Good Governance’;

e A comprehensive programme of internal audit review to give assurances concerning compliance

with relevant laws, legislation and internal policies and procedures; and

o The preparation of an annual report covering the work of the Board.
Training and Development

e Aninduction programme for all new Board members and .provision of development
opportunities for non-executive directors, which are reported at each Board meeting;

e Participation of Board members in regular development sessions;

e Procedures for identifying and addressing the development needs of Executive Directors via a
regular one-to-one meeting with the Chief Executive and formal six-monthly reviews; and

e A culture of continuous improvement, including the adoption of the principles of Best Value,
facilitated through the activities of our Organisational Performance Improvement Programme

Team and the Senior Operational Leadership Group.
During the year, the Board assessed its own performance as follows;

The National Self-assessment Survey was issued to all members of the Board and was completed by
81% of members. The results were then collated and reviewed in a facilitated Board workshop
session. Whilst the results overall were very positive, there were some improvements identified
which would further enhance the Corporate Governance framework. These improvements have been

incorporated into an agreed action plan owned by the Board.

The corporate governance framework, including the elements described above, has been assessed
against the UK Corporate Governance Code and compliance with the SPFM, and we have not
identified any gaps. In addition, the framework has been assessed against the ‘Blueprint for Good

Governance’ and the revised ‘Audit and Assurance Committee Handbook April 2018’.
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Review of Adequacy and Effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, | am responsible for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the system

of internal control. My review is informed by:

Executive and Senior responsible for developing, implementing and maintaining internal
Managers controls across their areas;
Audit Committee evaluation of the assurance arrangements in place, through their

review of the development of our Assurance Framework, and their

réview of the annual reports of all Board sub-committees;

' Internal Auditors . who submit reglﬂ;r'i‘épor{s”'cwc;tiéWAhudit Committee which include

. their independent and objective opinion on the effectiveness of |

risk management, control and governance processes, together

with recommendations for improvement; and

External Auditors who provide an Independent Report to the Audit Committee and

L 7‘]_the Board. -

In reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control | have taken assurance

from the following processes and mechanisms:

* Assurances from each Director that there have been no significant or uninvestigated breaches of
controls in their Directorate;

e The production of an annual report from each Standing Committee of the Board to the Audit -
Committee containing a self-reflective evaluation of the way in which they have discharged their
remit during the year and the impact of their work. Information is also included on any external
reviews or other evidence which they have received;

¢ The work of the Audit Committee in receiving reports from the Internal Auditors and in
producing an annual report to the Board which pulls tdgether all sources of assurance, inclﬁding
the annual reports from the other governance committees of the Boards and which provides

- overall assurances to inform this Governance Statement;

® The work of the Audit Committee in considering the arrangements which the organisation has in
place to secure Best Value and the work in reviewing all Counter Fraud activity including anti-
bribery and corruption provisions; '

* Consideration by the relevant Board Committees and the Executive Team of all internal audit
reports and-follow up of any areas of concern;

¢ The work of the Board in considering the corporate risk register at each of its meetings; ‘

¢ The work of the Board in the development of an Assurance Framework, the subsequent gap
analysis and creation of an action plan for further improvements iﬁ Corporate Governance;

e The consideration by the Board of its formal report covering the way in which it has discharged

its remit during the year;
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e The opinion of Internal Audit that NES has a framework of controls in place that provides
reasonable assurance regarding the effective and efficient achievement of the organisation’s
objectives ar'ldv the management of key risks;

e The work of Internal Audit, who submit to the organisation’s Audit Committee regular reports
which include their independent and objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the.
organisation’s systems of internal control, together with recommendations for improvement,
scrutiny of responses from management in response to recommendations made by both internal
and external auditors, and follow up to demonstrate that agreed actions are implemented
timeously; and '

e The opinion expressed by External Audit in the Independent Auditor Report and the actions to
address any comments made in the ‘Communication of Audit Matters with Those Charged with
Governance’.

| believe that, overall, we have maintained an adequate and effective system of internal control
throughout the year. As Chief Executive of NES | am content with the Governance arrangements of

the organisation during 2018/19.

Risk Assessment

NHSScotland bodies are subject to the requirements of the SPFM and must operate a risk
management strategy in accordance with relevant guidance issued by Scottish Ministers. The general

principles for a successful risk management strategy are set out in the SPFM.

The NES Risk Management Strategy is regularly reviewed and updated to respond to internal
developments and to audit recommendations. The key elements of the Risk Management Strategy

are.

The maintenance of a corporate risk register which identifies all significant corporate risks and any
changes from the previous period. Reporting on this is a standing agenda item in every Board
Meeting; '
The maintenance of departmental risk registers for the whole organisation, which require
managers to identify the risks to the achievement of their objectives, to regularly review the
ratings associated with those risks, and to indicate the steps they are taking to manage those

‘ risks;
The categorisation of risks into ‘Primary 1’, ‘Primary 2’, ‘Contingency’, ‘Housekeeping’ or ‘Low’,

- enabling prioritisation of those risks that are both high likelihood and high impact above those that
are either high likelihood but low impact, or low likelihood but high impact;
The articulation by the Board of the ‘risk appefite' of the organisation as it relates to different
categories of risk, which is used to assess the residual risk associated with individual ‘items on the
Corporate Risk Register against the level of risk which has been deemed acceptable, thus enabling
the organisation to focus resources on managing the risks that are unacceptable;

" The development of a matrix approach to the management of risk appetite to enable a greater

~ tolerance for risk during the development phase of new activities or ways of working;
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- Aregular programme of development and training for identified risk champions in each
~department; 7

j The inclusion of risk awareness 'training in the Corporate Induction Programme for all new staff;

- and

; The ongoing delivery of an Information Governance action plan to manage and monitor
information risks. This action plan is regularly reviewed by the Information Governance Group and
an annual report is presented to the Finance and Performance Management Committee in May |

- each year.

The Board’s corporate risks are categorised as Strategic & Policy risks; Operational & Service delivery
risks; Financial Risks; Reputational risks and Accountability & Governance risks. The corporate risk
register details both the inherent and residual risk ratings against all risks identified in each category
and compares the residual risk assessed against the level of tolerance of risk for‘ each category (the
risk'appetite) that the Board has defined.

More generally, the organisation is committed to continuous development and improvement
through developing systems in response to any relevant reviews and developments in best practice.
In particular, during the year to 31 March 2019, and up to the signing of the accounts, the Board has
developed an Assurance Framework to initially map all the key sources of assurance within the
organisation and define, using the ‘three lines of assurance’ conceptual model, the type and nature
of the assurance. Where there is significant management and oversight assurances already in place
for routine operations, this enables Internal Audit resource to be more effectively targeted towards

activities with a higher level of residual risk.

During the year to 31st March 2019, no significant control weaknesses or issues have arisen, and no
significant failures have arisen in the expected standards for good governance, risk management and
control.i There have been no instances of fraud during 2018/19. A number of recommendations
have arisen from our internal audit reports, which we have accepted, and which will be implemented

and followed up.
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Governance Framework

The Board meets regularly during the year to progress the business of the National Health Board.
There have been 8 meetings and 4 workshops during 2018/19. Attendance by members at these

meetings is detailed below.

BOARD MEETINGS WORKSHOPS

NAME ! ATTENDED ATTENDED

MR D GARBUTT 8/8 3/4

MS C WILKINSON * 1/2 0/0

MS E FORD ' 6/8 3/4

MS S DOUGLAS-SCOTT * 2/2 0/0

MR D HUTCHENS 7/8 2/4

DR D STEELE 8/8 4/4

MS S STEWART * : 3/3 11

DR A TANNAHILL 5/8 - 34

MRS L DUNION 6/6 3/4

MS A WALKER 6/6 ‘ 4/4

MS A CURRIE 4/4 2/2

MS C LAMB 8/8 4/4

PROF S IRVINE 7/8 4/4
|MRs A mccoLL 8/8 ‘ 4/4

MRS K WILSON 8/8 4/4

*These members retired from the Board in 2018/19

The Scottish Health Plan established that the following standard committees should exist which are
relevant to the organisation:
e Audit; »
e Staff Governance;
e Clinical Governance (NES equivalent is Educational Research and Governance Committee);
e Patient Focus Public Involvement (PFPI). This committee was stood dowh by the Board in
April 2012 and, in June 2012, the Board approved proposals to split the specific PFPI and
Equality & Diversity responsibilities between the following groups:
e Staff Governance Committee; ‘
e Educational and Research Governance Committee;
e Finance and Performance Management Committee;
¢ Executive Team; and
e PCCP, Equality & Diversity Lead Network.
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The Board also has a Remuneration Committee, the membership details of which can be found on

page 42.

-Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets four times per year to consider internal control; risk management and
corporate governance issues; financial accounting matters; and to receive reports from the internal

and external auditors.

The membership and attendance of the Audit Committee during 2018/19 was as follows:

MEMBER POSITION MEETINGS ATTENDED
MS C WILKINSON Non-Executive Board Member (Chair until May 2018) 0/1
MS S DOUGLAS-SCOTT Non-Executive Board Member 11
DR D STEELE Non-Executive Boafd Member (Chair from Jun 2018) 4/4
MS S STEWART Non-Executive Board Member 1/2
MS A WALKER Non;Executive Board Member ‘ 3/3
MRS L DUNION Non-Executive Board Member 3/3
MS A CURRIE Non-Executive Board Member 2/2

Staff Governance Committee

The Staff Governance committee meets four times per year and has an important role in ensuring
consistency of policy and equity of treatment of staff across the organisation, in line with the

National Staff Governance Standard.

The membership and attendance of the staff governance committee during 2018/19 was as follows:

MEMBER POSITION MEETINGS ATTENDED ‘

MS S DOUGLAS-SCOTT Non-Executive Board Member (Chair until May 2018) 1/1
MS E FORD . Employee Director & Non-Executive Board Member 4/4
MS S STEWART ' Non-Executive Board Member 1/1
DR A TANNAHILL Non-Executive Board Member 4/4
MRS L DUNION Non-Executive Board Member (Chair from Aug 2018) 3/3
MS A CURRIE Non-Executive Board Member 2/2

Educational and Research Governance Committee

The Educational and Research Governance Committee meets four times per year and its main purpose
is to advise the Board on matters relating to educational research and the management of educational
quality. The Committee advises the Board on the strategic planning of relevant aspects of educational
research and educational quality and maintains oversight of the impleméntation‘ of approved

programmes.

39



NHS Education for Scotland Annual Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

The membership and attendance of the Educational and Research Governance Committee during
2018/19 was as follows:

DR A TANNAHILL Non-Executive Board Member (Chair until Feb 18) _ 1/1 '
MR D HUTCHENS . |Non-Executive Board Member (Chair from May 18) 4/4
DR D STEELE Non-Executive Board Member 4/4
MS C WILKINSON Non-Executive Board Member 1/1
MS A WALKER Non-Executive Board Member 3/3

Finance and Performance Management Committee

The Finance and Performance Management Committee meets four times per year to provide
additional scrutiny of financial reports, including annual budgets and the 3-year financial plan;
operational performance, procurement and proposals for significant new expenditure; management

accounts and efficiency programmes.

The membership and attendance of the Finance and Performance Management Committee during
2018/19 was as follows:

MEMBER POSITION MEETINGS ATTENDED
MR D GARBUTT Chair of NES Board, (Chair) 4/4
MS E FORD Employee Director & Non-Executive Board Member 4/4
MR D HUTCHENS Non-Executive Board Member 4/4

Digital Committee

The Digital Committee meets four times per year to provide additional scrutiny of financial reports,
including annual budgets and the developing workplans; proposals for significant new expenditure;

and performance against targets for both NES Digital Service (NDS) and NES Digital.

The membership and attendance of the Digital Committee during 2018/19 was as follows:

MEMBER POSITION MEETINGS ATTENDED
PROFESSOR A MORRIS University of Edinburgh (Chair) ! 3/3
MR D GARBUTT Chair of NES Board 3/3
MR D HUTCHENS Non-Executive Board Member, NES ' 3/3
MR A McCANN Non-Executive Board Member, NHS Lothian * 3/3
MR G MULGAN Chief Executive, NESTA * 1/3

1. These individuals are not members of the NES Board, they are co-opted members appointed for their

significant expertise in Digital development and implementation at scale, or they represent stakeholder groups.
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2. Remuneration and Staff Report

Remuneration Report

Determination of Senior Employees’ Remuneration

Senior employees’ remuneration is determined by the Scottish Government. For senior staff on

Executive or Senior Managers pay arrangements, pay and conditions are determined by ministerial
direction and are mandatory. It is the responsibility of the Remuneration Committee to ensure that
the performance of staff in this cohort is formally assessed at the end of the performance year and

to submit its recommendations to the National Performance Management Committee for approval.

1. Employment Contracts and Business Interests

The notice period for the Chief Executive and all other senior managers is three months’ notice of

termination of contract. No contract contains any provision for compensation for early termination.

~ Any business interests requifed to be disclosed are noted in Section 1, Accountability Report - Board

Members” and Senior Managers’ Interests of the Directors’ Report on page 29.

2. Membership and Remit of the Remuneration Committee

The remit of the Remuneration Committee is reviewed annually in March. The following covers the
period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 ; :

® To agree all terms and conditions of employment for the Chief Executive and direct reports to
the Chief Executive, including job description, job evaluation, terms of employment, basic pay,
performance pay and bonuses and benefits;

* To agree objectives for the Chief Executive and direct reports to the Chief Executive, normally
before the start of the year in which performance is assessed;

® To monitor the performance of the Chief Executive and direct reports to the Chief Executive, in
accordance with their performance plans;

e To review submissions from the Chief Executive for the terms of any Settlement Agreement
which is out with the provisions of our Organisational Change and Redeployment Policy or is out
with the severance terms set out in NHSScotland terms and conditions of employment;

* To review and endorse the award of severance arrangements under the terms of the NES

Redeployment Procedures and out with any organisation wide Voluntary Severance and Early
Retirement Scheme;
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e To conduct regular reviews of NES policy for the remuneration and performance management of
the Chief Executive and direct reports to the Chief Executive, in the light of any guidance issued
by NHSScotland;

e To delegate responsibility to a sub-group of the committee to act as the Appeals body for the
Chief Executive and direct reports to the Chief Executive who have a grievance concerning their
terms and conditions of service; and

e Together with the Chief Executive of NES, make recommendations regarding the citation of
doctors and dentists to the Scottish Advisory Committee on Distinction Awards, General Dental
Practitioners under CRUMP discretionary progression arrangements and consultant discretionary
point progression.

The remit of the Commiittee is reviewed annually.

The membership and attendance of the Remuneration Committee during 2018/19 was as follows:

DR D STEELE : Non-Executive Board Member (Chair) _ 3/3

MR D GARBUTT Chair of NES Board 3/3

MR D HUTCHENS Non-Executive Board Member 2/3

MS S STEWART Non-Executive Board Member ‘ 1/1

MRS L DUNION Non-Executive Board Member 1/1

MS E FORD Employee Director & Non-Executive Board Member 2/3

3. Policy, Assessment and Performance Appraisal in relation to the Remuneration of

Senior Managers

Senior managers are remunerated in accordance with the Felt Fair Panel’s recommendations.
Additionally, performance related bay may be awarded in accordance with the appraisal
arrangements for staff on executive pay ranges. Further information can be referenced in two
related circulars which are extant; HDL(2006) 54, HDL(2007)15, and the Good Practice Guide to

Performance Management.

Assessment and performance appraisal is carried out in accordance with the guidance set out in the

above circulars.
4. Explanation of Any Significant Awards Made to Past Senior Employees

There were none during 2018/19.
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5. Cash Equivalent Transfer Values (CETV)

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension
scheme benefits accrued by a member ata particular point in time. The benefits valued are the
member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. A CETV
is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another
pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the
pension benefits they have accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the
benefits that the individuals have accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the
scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The figures include the
value of any pension benefit in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred
to the NHS scheme. They also include'any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a
result of their purchasing additional pension benefits at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within
the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries and do not take
account of any actual or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which

may be due when pension benefits are drawn.
The Real Increase in the Value of CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the increase in
accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any
benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market
valuation factors for the start and end of the period. The opening figure is recalculated each year,
based on the new market factors, therefore it does not agree to the closing balance in the previous

year.
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Remuneration Table

For the Year Ended 31 March 2019 — Current Year (Audited Information)

In accordance with the FReM and the Companies Act, this calculation aims to bring public bodies in
line with other industries in disclosing an assessed cumulative pension benefit for a standard 20-year

period, which is the estimated life span following retirement.

The ‘total earnings in year’ column shows the remuneration relating to actual earnings payable in

2018/19.
REMUNERATION OF: ]
Gross Bonus . Total Earnings - Total
Benefits L Pension i
Salary Payments e in year i Remuneration
in kind Benefits
(bands of (bands of ¢ (bands of £000's (bands of
£5,000) £5,000) £5,000) £5,000)
EXECUTIVE MEMBERS e Vo
EhichExecttive | 125-130 0 0 | 125-130 50 175-180
Ms C Lamb
Riceiorafiediche 190-195 0 0 190-195 46 235-240
Prof S lrvine
Direcoparainanee 100-105 0 0 100-105 40 140-145
Ms A McColl
Director of Nursing,
Midwifery & Allied Health
Professions 105-110 0 0 105-110 40 145-150

Ms K Wilson

NON EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

Mr D Garbutt (Chair) 25-30 0 0 25-30 n/a 25-30
Ms C Wilkinson® 0-5 0 0 0-5 n/a 0-5
Ms S Douglas-Scott" 0-5 0 0 0-5 n/a 0-5
Dr D Steele ‘ : 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10
DrATannahil 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10
Mr D Hutchens 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10
Ms S Stewart’ 0-5 0 0 0-5 n/a 5-10
Ms S Walker? 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10
Ms L Dunion’ 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10
Ms A Currie® 0-5 0 0 0-5 n/a 0-5
Ms E Ford, Employee .

oS | 50-55 0 0 50-55 10 60-65

Notes:

1. Ms C Wilkinson and Ms S Douglas-Scott both retired from the NES Board in May 2018. Ms S Stewart resigned from the
Board in June 2018. The remuneration disclosed above was for the period prior to their leaving dates. The annual
equivalent remuneration for each of them is in the range £5k-£10k '

2. Ms S Walker, and Ms L Dunion joined the NES Board in June 2018, and Ms A Currie joined in September 2018. The
remuneration disclosed above was for the period from their joining dates. The annual equivalent remuneration for each of
them is in the range £5-£10k

3. Ms E Ford's total salary and associated Pension benefits have been disclosed above. The Employee Director's salary
includes £40k-£45k in respect of non-board duties
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Remuneration Table (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 March 2019~ Current Year (Audited Information) (continued)

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
Chief Executive

Pension Benefits (£000)

_| Total accrued pension

and related lump sum
at pensionable age at
31 March 2019

(bands of £5,000)

Real increase in

pension and related

lump sum at

pensionable age at

31 March 2019

(bands of £2,500)

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer Value
(CETV) at 31
March 2018
£'000

Cash
Equivalent

Transfer Value

(CETV) at 31
March 2019
£'000

Real increase in
CETV in the
year
£'000

Health Professions
Mrs K Wilson

Mr D Garbutt (Chair)

NON EXECUTIVE MEMBER!

No lump sum

n/a

No lump sum

n/a

55-60 2.5-5 792 858 66
Ms C Lamb No lump sum No lump sum
Director 9f Medicine 40-45 and 2.5-5and 942 1.020 77 -
Prof S Irvine 125-130 lump sum | 7.5 - 10 lump sum '
Director of Finance
35-40 2.5-5
6 45
Mrs A McColl No lump sum No lump sum 47 >
Director of Nursing,
Midwif d Allied 5-10 2.5-5
lawirery an e 5 62 102 40

Ms C Wilkinson n/a n/a n/a nfa . n/a
Ms S Douglas-Scott! n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Dr D Steele n/a n/a ok s nfa
Dr A Tannabhill n/a n/a n/a - n/a n/a
Mr D Hutchens n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Ms S Stewart" n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Ms S Walker? n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Ms L Dunion® n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Ms A Currie? n/a ‘ n/a n/a n/a n/a
e 5-10 and 0-2.5and

RIS sl 20-25 lump sum 0-2.5 lump sum 1 102 10
TOTAL e
Notes:

1. Ms C Wilkinson and Ms S Douglas-Scott both retired from the NES Board in May 2018, Ms S Stewart resigned from the
Board in June 2018. The remuneration disclosed above was for the period prior to their leaving dates. The annual
equivalent remuneration for each of them is in the range £5k-£10k
2. Ms S Walker and Ms L Dunion joined the NES Board in June 2018, and Ms A Currie joined in September 2018. The
remuneration disclosed above was for the period from their joining dates. The annual equivalent remuneration for each of
them is in the range £5-£10k
3. Ms E Ford's total salary and associated Pension benefits have been disclosed above. The Employee Director's salary
includes £40k-£45k in respect of non-board duties
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Remuneration Table (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 March 2018 — Prior Year (Audited Information)

REMUNERATION OF:
Gross Bonus Y Total Earnings i Total
Benefits . Pension i
Salary Payments e o in year : Remuneration
i in kind Benefits
(bands of (bands of £ (bands of £000's (bands of

£5,000) £5,000) £5,000) £5,000)

"EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

Chief Executive

120-125 0 0 120-125 39 160-165

Ms C Lamb
DirectgbokMeHidie 190-195 0 "0 190-195 5 195-200
Prof S Irvine
Pigectolf o FInance 95-100 0 0 95-100 28 125-130
Ms A McColl
Director of Nursing,
Midwifery and Allied Health

b 75-80 0 0 75-80 0 75-80
Professions
DrC Ferguson1
Director of Nursing,
Midwifery & Allied Health
Professions 25-30 0 0 25-30 9 35-40
Ms K Wilson?
NON EXECUTIVE MEMBERS Sl
Dr L Burley CBE (Chair)? 25-30 0 0 25-30 n/a 25-30
Ms C Wilkinson 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10
Ms S Douglas-Scott - 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10
Dr D Steele 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10
Dr A Tannahill 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10
Mr D Hutchens 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10
Ms S Stewart 5-10 0 0 5-10 n/a 5-10

Ms E Ford, Employee
50-55 0 0 50-55 10 60-65

Director®

Notes:
1.Dr Ferguson left NES on 31 December 2017. The salary disclosed above was for the period to her leaving date. The

annual equivalent salary is in the range £100k-£105k

2. Ms K Wilson joined NES on 1 January 2018. The salary disclosed above was for the period from her joining date. The
annual equivalent salary is in the range £100k-£105k ‘

3. DrBurley’s term in office ended on 31 March 2018. Mr David Garbutt was appointed Chair from 1 April 2018.

" 4. Ms E Ford’s salary and associated Pension benefits have been disclosed above. The Employee Director’s salary includes
£40k-£50k in respect of the non-board duties.
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Remuneration Table (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 March 2018 - Prior Year (Audited Information) (continued)

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
Chief Executive

and related lump sum
at pensionable age at
31 March 2018

(bands of £5,000)

50-55

pension and related
lump sum at
pensionable age at
31 March 2018
(bands of £2,500)

2.5-5

Equivalent
Transfer Value
(CETV) at 31
March 2017
£'000

Pension Benefits (£'000)
Total accrued pension Real increase in Cash Cash Real increase in

Equivalent
Transfer Value
(CETV) at 31
March 2018
£'000

CETV in the
year
£'000

Health Professions
Mrs K Wilson?
NON EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

No lump sum

No lump sum

751 58
Ms C Lamb No lump sum No lump sum 693
Director ?f Medicine 35-40 and 2.5-5 and o1 597 55
Prof S Irvine 110-115 lump sum | 5-7.5 lump sum
Director of Finance 30-35 0-2.5
) 406 442 37
Mrs A McColl No lump sum No lump sum 0
Director of Nursing,
Midwifery and Allied 45-50 and 0-2.5and '
y : . 1083 1092 7
Health Professions 140-145 lump sum | 0-2.5lump sum .
DrC Ferguson1 ‘
Director of Nursing,
Midwifery and Allied 0-5 0-2.5
y 48 59 11

(Employee Director)®

Notes:

1. Dr Ferguson left NES on 31 December 2017. The pension details disclosed above relate to her period of service with NES.

DrL Burley, CBE {Chair) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Ms S Douglas-S.cott n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Mr D Hutchens n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Dr D Steele n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Ms S Stewart n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Dr A Tannahill n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Ms C Wilkinson n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Ms E Ford 5-10 and 0-2.5 and

128 139 8

15-20 lump sum 0-2.5 lump sum

2. K Wilson joined NES on 1 January 2018. The pension details disclosed above relate to her period of service with NES..

3. Ms E Ford’s pension benefits disclosed above are in relation to her non-Board duties.

The value of pension benefits accrued during any year is calculated as the real increase in pension

multiplied by 20, plus the real increase in any lump sum, less the contributions made by the

individual. The real increases exclude increases due to inflation or any increase or decrease due to a

transfer of pension rights.
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Fair Pay Disclosure (Audited Information)

2018/19 2017/18

RANGE OF STAFF REMUNERATION

£17,437-£192,412

RANGE OF STAFF REMUNERATION

£16,532-£190,812

HIGHEST EARNING DIRECTOR'S
TOTAL REMUNERATION

£190,000-£195,000

HIGHEST EARNING DIRECTOR'S
TOTAL REMUNERATION

£190,000-£195,000

MEDIAN TOTAL REMUNERATION

£51,187

MEDIAN TOTAL REMUNERATION

£51,848

RATIO (BASED ON MIDPOINT OF
DIRECTOR PAY-BAND)

3.76

RATIO (BASED ON MIDPOINT OF
DIRECTOR PAY-BAND)

3.71

Commentary

Remuneration for staff includes salary and contracted allowances including overtime payments. Only

individuals contracted for more than 2 hours per week have been included. The calculation has been

adjusted to reflect annualised whole time equivalent for each individual. This removes the effect of

part-year expenditure for those joining or leaving payroll during the year and includes equivalent

full-time expenditure for part-time staff.
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Staff Report
a) Higher Paid Employees Remuneration
2018 NUMBER 2019 NUMBER
Other employees (ie excluding Executive Board Members) whose remuneration fell within the following ranges:
Clinicians
1 ' © £70,001 to £80,000 8
0 £80,001 to £90,000 1

£90,001 to

£100,000

18 £70,001 to £80,000 , 19
£80,001 to £90,000

£90,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £110,000

£110,001 to £120,000
£120,001 to £130,000

£130,001 to £140,000
£140,001 to £150,000

£150,001 to £160,000
£160,001 to £170,000

£170,001 to £180,000
£180,001 to £190,000

N IO (R, ININ|IRrIMIO|IB|NMNIN
N IO |O|IN|INIOINM|IRIA|lW]DS

In the above table, staff are grouped according to whether they directly provide patient care (Clinicians) or
otherwise. The salary reflects the actual payments paid to the individuals and may not reflect an annual

equivalent salary.

b) Staff Expenditure

Executive Non Inward Outward
Board Executive Perman- Second- Other Second-
Members Members ent Staff ees Staff ees Total

£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

STAFF EXPENDITURE

48,303 Salaries and wages 527 126 71,495 0 0 (20,991) 51,157
5,262 Social security expenditure 68 9 7,958 0 0 (2,413) 5,622
5,899 NHS scheme employers' expenditure 78 6 8175 0 0 (2,063) 6,196
5,339 Inward secondees 0 0 0 6,462 0 0 6,462
1,893 Agency staff 0 0 0 0 2,398 0 2,398

Compensation for loss of office or early

retirement*

TOTAL STAFF EXPENDITURE (25,467)
The above includes expenditure for
staff engaged directly on capital

1,640 0 0 811 28 1,608 0 2,447

1. In prior years the compensation for loss of office calculation was based on an employee’s continuous service
record within NES. Subject to a challenge in 2018/19 on this methodology, the calculation is now based on

employee’s continuous service record across the whole of NHSScotland.
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c)

d)

e)

f)

Staff Numbers

Executive Non Inward
Average . Board Executive Perman- Second- Other
Mean Members Members _ ent Staff ees Staff

1,124.4 | Whole Time Equivalent (wte) 4 7.8 1,437.7 64.7 26.7

The above includes wte of staff engaged

27.5| . g S
directly on capital projects of:

Included in the total staff numbers
23.1 o
3 above were disabled staff * of: 0 0 273 0 0

0| Included in the total staff numbers above were Special Advisers of:

* Refers to staff who consider themselves to be disabled

Staff Composition

2018/19 2017/18

Female

Executive Directors 1 3

Non-Executive Directors and
Employee Director

Other 510 1845 | 1416

Total Headcount 514 1343 7 1857 1043 1428

Sickness Absence Data
The Board has a proactive policy on the management of sickness absence and the absence
rate for 2018/19 was 2.09% (2017/18: 2.56%).

Disabled Persons Employment

As an equal opportunities employer, the Board welcomes applications for employment from
individuals irrespective of sex, marital status, race, disability, age, sexual orientation,
language or social origin. As a VV symbol user (Positive About Disabled People), NES also
actively seeks to provide an environment where any disabled applicant or those employees
who become disabled can continue to contribute to the work of the organisation.

The NES Equality Impact Assessment policy ensures that the impact of equality, human rights

and health inequalities is embedded and integrated into the decisions and actions of the

‘ Board. The systems of training, education and appraisal of staff also include the

requirements of knowledge and understanding of equality, diversity and discrimination.
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g)

h)

Exit Packages

Number of departures Number of departures

agreed agreed

2018/19 2017/18

< £10,000 | 1 3
£10,000 - £25,000 1 0
£25,000 - £50,000 ' 1 1
£50,000 - £100,000 1 0
4 4

Total '
Total Resource Costs (£000) 138 53

Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 came into force
on 1 April 2017. The regulations place a legislative.requirement on relevant public sector
employers to collate and publish, on an annual basis, a range of data on the amount and cost

of facility time within their organisation. The data will be published at the following link:

www.hes.scot.nhs.uk

No of employees who
were relevant union

WTE employee % of time spent on facility

No of Employees

officials in 2018/19 bumbey time
9 8.5 0% 0
1-50% 9
51-99% 0
100% 0

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time : £10,577
Total Pay Bill £97,302,224
% of total pay bill spent on facility time 0.011%

Time spent on trade union activities

Number of hours 485
|% of hours of facility time spent on trade union activities 100%
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3. Parliamentary Accountability Report

Losses and Special Payments

In the year to 31 March 2019, there were no balances in excess of £250,000 that were written off.

Fees and Charges

In the year to 31 March 2019 there were no services where the full annual cost was £1m or more, or
where the amount of the income and full cost of the service are material to the financial statements.

Chief Executive as Accountable Officer 27 June 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of NHS Education for Scotland, the Auditor General
for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of NHS Education
for Scotland for the year ended 31 March 2019 under the National Health Service (Scotland) Act
1978. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the
Summary of Resource Outturn, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flow,
the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparatioh is applicable‘law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and adapted by the 2018/19
Government Financial Reporting Manual (the 2018/19 FReM).

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:

e give a true and fair view in accordénce with the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978
and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Ministers of the state of the board's affairs
as at 31 March 2019 and of its net expenditure for the year then ended;

e have been prbperly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as
interpreted and adapted by the 2018/19 FReM; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Service
(Scotland) Act 1978 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Ministers.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor
General for Scotland. our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We were
appointed by the Auditor General on 31 May 2016. The period of total uninterrupted
appointment is three years. We are indeperident of the board and its group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK
including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Non-audit services prohibited by
the Ethical Standard were not provided to the board. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK)
require us to report to you where:

* the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial

statements is not appropriate; or
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e the board has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about its ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Risks of material misstatement

We have reported in a separate Annual Audit Report, which is available from the Audit Scotland
website, the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement that we identified and our
conclusions thereon.

Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Executive's Responsibilities as the
Accountable Officer, the Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework,
and for such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is responsible for assessing the
board's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and-are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control. The capability of the audit to detect fraud and other

irregularities depends on factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency.and

extent of manipulation, the degree of coliusion involved, the relative size of individual amounts

manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. We therefore design and perform -
. audit procedures which respond to the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
Other information in the annual report and accounts

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information in the annual report and

accounts. The other information comprises the information other than the financial statements,

the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report, and our independent auditor’s report.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed by the Auditor
General for Scotland to the extent explicitly stated later in this report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read all the
other information in the annual report and accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on regularity of expenditure and income
Opinion on regularity

In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements
were incurred or applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and guidance issued by
the Scottish Ministers.

Responsibilities for regularity

The Accountable Officer is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income.
We are responsible for expressing an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in
accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.

Report on other requirements
Opinions on matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland

In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly
prepared in accordance with the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978 and directions
made thereunder by the Scottish Ministers.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

e the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements-and that report has been
prepared in accordance with the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978 and directions
made thereunder by the Scottish Ministers; and ‘

e the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report
has been prepared in accordance with the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978 and
directions made thereunder by the Scottish Ministers. '

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We are required by the Auditor General for Scotland to report to you if, in our opinion:

° adéquate accounting records have not been kept; or
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e the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report are not
in agreement with the accounting records; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

e there has been a failure to achieve a prescribed financial objective.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities

In addition to our responsibilities for the annual report and accounts, our conclusions on the

wider scope responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice are set out in our Annual
Audit Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In accordance with
paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, we do not undertake to have responsibilitiés to
members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties. ‘

Joanne Brown, {for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP)
110 Queen Street‘r
Glasgow

G1 3BX

A% Jode ROT\Y
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Direction by the Scottish Ministers

NHS Education for Scotland

" DIRECTION BY THE SCOTTISH MINISTERS

1. The Scottish Ministers, in exercise of the powers conferred on them by -
sections 86(1), (1B) and (3) of the National Health Service (Scotland) Act
1978, as read with article 6(1) of and the Schedule to. the NHS Education for
Scotland Order 2002, (S.S.1. 2002/103),and all powers enabling them in that
behalf, hereby give the following direction.

2. . The statement of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2006, and
subsequent years, shall comply with the accounting principles and disclosure
requirements of the edition of the Gevernment Financial Reporting Manual
(FReM) which is in force for the year for which the statement of accounts are
prepared.

3. - Subject to the foregoing requirements, the accounts shall also comply with
- any accounts format, disclosure. and accounting requirements issued by the
Scottish Ministers from time to time. '

4, The accounts shall be prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the
income and expenditure and cash flows for the finandial year, and of the state
- of affairs as at the end of the financial year.

i This direction shall be reproduced as an appendix to the statement of
accounts. The direction given on 30 December 2002 is hereby revoked.

Dated \o\').\}ﬂ(j(‘
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Statement of Comprehensive Net

Expenditure
for the year ended 31 March 2019

2018 2019

£'000 Note £'000
Employee Expenditure -

68,181 Staff Expenditure 3 95,531

68,181 95,531
Operating Expenditure (non-employee)

336,111 Direct Educational Expenditure’ 4 352,371

43,028 Expenditure for Other Educational Support’ 5 44,543

6,486 NES Infrastructure Expenditure 6 6,865

453,806 Gross Expenditure for the year 499,310

(8,863) Less: Operating Income” 7 (33,925)

444,943 Net Expenditure for the year 465,385

1. Although this expenditure is classified as non pay expenditure for NES, the majority of the figures in this category fund
the costs of salary of clinical staff employed by other organisations

2. Income from NHSScotland bodies includes recharges of £23,982k for the Lead Employer Programme for which NES was
an Early Adopter in August 2017 and the Programme was expanded in August 2018.



NHS Education for Scotland Annual Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Summary of Resource Outturn
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Summary of Core Revenue Resource

Note £'000
Net expenditure ' SOCNE 465,385
Total non core expenditure (see below) (1,031)
Total core expenditure 464,354
- 464,723
Core revenue resource limit

Saving against core revenue resource limit

Summary of Non Core Revenue Resource £'000

Depreciation / Amortisation 6 1,178
Annually Managed Expenditure 6 147)|
Total non core expenditure (see below) 1,031
Non core revenue resource limit 1,067

gainst non core revenue resource limit

Summary of Resource Outturn Resource Expenditure Saving
£'000 £'000

464,723 464,354
1,067 1,031
465,790 465,385
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Statement of Financial Position
as at 31st March 2019

2018 2019
£'000 Note £'000 £'000
Non-current assets ‘
5,466 Intangible assets 9a 7,517
3,635 Property, plant and equipment 9b 3,163
9,101 Total non-current assets 10,680
Current assets
Financial assets: -
5,266 Trade and other receivables 10 3,365
271 Cash and cash equivalents 11 195
5,537 Total current assets . 3,560
14,638 Total assets 14,240
Current liabilities
(22) Provisions 13a (187)
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables

Total current liabilities

Non-current assets less net current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
(4,278) Provisions 13a (4,028)
Financial liabilities: )
Trade and other payabies
Total non-current liabilities

Assets less liabilities

Taxpayers' equity

General fund (10,444)
Revaluation reserve 3

(8,396)  Total taxpayers' equity

Approved by the Board on 27 June 2019

Director of Finance Chief Executive

The Notes to the Accounts, numbered 1 to 18, form an integral part of these Accounts.

60



NHS Education for Scotland Annual Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 March 2019

£'000 Note £'000 £'000

"Cash flows from operating activities

(444,943) et expenditure o SOCNE  (465,385)
1:212 Adjustments for non-cash transactions 6 1,238
(1,585) (Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables 2,10 1,901
(808) increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 2,12 2,074
(717)  Dpecrease in provisions - 2,13 . (85)
(446,841) et cash outflow from operating activities (460,257)

Cash flows from investing activities

(439) Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2,90 (619)
(1,640)  purchase of inta ngible assets 2,9 (2,464)
(2,079) et cash outflow from investing activities (3,083)

Cash flows from financing activities

448,920 Fynding 463,340
(361) Movement in general fund working capital (76)
448,559 et Financing 463,264
(361) Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the period 11 (76)
632 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 11 271
271 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 11 195

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net cash

(361) Decrease in cash in year (76)
632 Netcashat 1 April 2018 11 271
271 Net cash at 31 March 2019 11 195
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Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’

Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2019

General Revaluation Total

Current Year:

Fund Reserve Reserves

£'000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2018 (8,399) 3 (8,396)
Changes in taxpayers' equity for 2018/19
Net expenditure for the year (465,385) 0 (465,385)
Total recognised income and expense for 2018/19 (465,385) 0  (465,385)
Funding
Drawn down 463,264 0 463,264
Movement in General Fund Creditor 76 0 76
Total funding 463,340 0 463,340

Balance at 31 March 2019 (10,444)

. General Revaluation Total
Prior Year:
Fund Reserve Reserves
£'000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2017 (12,376) 3 (12,373)
Changes in taxpayers' equity for 2017/18
Net expenditure for the year (444,943) 0  (444,943)
Total recognised income and expense for 2017/18 (444,943) 0 (444,943)
Funding:
Drawn down 448,559 0 448,559
Movement in General Fund Creditor 361 0 361
Total funding ' 448,920 0 448,920|
Balance at 31 March 2018 (8,399) 3 (8,396)
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Notes to the Accounts

Note 1. Accounting Policies

1. Authority

In accordance with-the accounts direction issued by Scottish Ministers under section 19(4) of the
Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 appended, these Accounts have been
prepared in accordance with the Government FReM issued by HM Treasury, which follows
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRS as adopted by
the EU), IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies Act 2006 to the exteht that they are meaningful
and appropriate to the public sector. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items

considered material in relation to the accounts.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving a higher.degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed

in section 23 below.

Accounting standards, amendments or interpretations were issued and effective for the first time

in 2018/19

The following accounting standards have been applied for the first time in 2018/19:
e |FRS 9 Financial Instruments
The standard replaces IAS 39 and introduces a single approach to classification and
measurement of the financial instruments; a new forward-looking expected loss
impairment model; and a revised approach to hedge accounting.
e IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The standard introduces greater disclosure requirements, as well as a new five stage model

for assessing and recognising revenue from contracts with new customers.
Both standards have been applied retrospectively and without restatement of prior year figures.

. There were no Accounting standards, amendments or interpretations early adopted in 2018/19.

There are no new standards, amendments or interpretations issued but not adopted this year.
IFRS 16 Leases was published by the International Accounting Standards Board in January 2016,

which is applicable for the accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. This means that
the standard will be effective for the first time in the year ending 31 March 2020. The standard

63



NHS Education for Scotland Annual Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Note 1. Accounting Policies (continued)

requires leases to be recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as “right of use” assets with a
corresponding liability for future lease payments. As at the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, IFRS 16 has not been adopted for use in the public sector and has not been included in

the FReM. As such, it is not yet feasible to quantify the impact of the standard accurately.

2. Going Concern

The accounts are prepared on the goin'g concern basis, which provides that the entity will continue in

operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Further information is provided in the Accountability Report .
3. Accounting Convention

The accounts are prepared on a historical cost basis as modified to reflect changes in the value of

fixed assets.
4. Funding

Most of the expenditure of the National Health Board is met from funds advanced by the Scottish
Government within an approved revenue resource limit. Cash drawn down to fund expenditure

within this approved revenue resource limit is credited to the general fund.

All other income receivable by the Board that is not classed as funding is recognised in the year in
which it is receivable. Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the

following financial year, that income is deferred.

Funding for the acquisition of capital assets received from the Scottish Government is credited to the

general fund when cash is drawn down.

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been
received, and is measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure except where it results in the creation of a non-
current asset such as plant and equipment.

5. Plant and Equipment

The treatment of capital assets in the accounts (capitalisation, valuation and depreciation) is in

accordance with the NHS Capital Accounting Manual.
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Note 1. Accounting Policies (continued)
5.1 Recognition

Plant and Equipment is capitalised where: it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative
purposes; it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided
to, the Board; it is expected to be used for more than one financial year; and the cost of the item can

be measured reliably.

All assets falling into the following categories are capitalised:

1) Plant and equipment assets which are capable of being used for a period which could exceed
one year and have a cost equal to or greater than £5,000. _

2) In cases where a new development would face an exceptional write off of items of equipment
costing individually less than £5,000, the Board has the option to capitalise initial revenue
equipment costs with a standard life of up to 10 yearé.

3) Assets of lesser value may be capitalised where they form part of a group of similar assets
purchased at approximately the same time and cost over £20,000 in total, or where they are

part of the initial costs of equipping a new development and total over £20,000.

5.2 Measurement

Valuation

All plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly
attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the ocation and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are

measured subsequently at fair value as follows:

e Equipment, installations and fittings are valued at fair value. A depreciated historical cost
basis is a proxy for fair value in respect of such assets which have short useful lives or low
values (or both).

e Assets under construction are valued at current cost. These are also subject to impairment

review.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised into an asset’s carrying value when it is probable the future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Board and the cost can be measured
reliably. Where subsequent expenditure does not meet these criteria, the expenditure is charged to
the SOCNE. If part of an asset is replaced, then the part it replaces is de-recognised, regardless of

whether or not it has been depreciated separately.
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Note 1. Accounting Policies (continued)
Revaluations and Impairment

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except
" where, and to the extent that, they reverse an impairment previously recognised in the SOCNE, in

which case they are recognised as income. Movements on revaluation are considered for individual

assets rather than groups.

Permanent decreases in asset values and impairments are charged gross to the SOCNE. Any related

balance on the revaluation reserve is transferred to the General Fund.

5.3 Depreciation

ftems of Plant and Equipment are depreciated to their estimated residual value over their remaining
useful economic lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery

benefits.
Depreciation is charged on each main class of tangible asset as follows:

1) Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or

reverts to the Board, respectively.
2) Plant, equipment and fixtures and fittings are depreciated over the estimated life of the

asset,
Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis.

The following asset lives have been used:

Asset Category / Component Useful Life

Plant & Machinery and Information Technology 5 years to 10 years
Furniture & Fittings 5 years to 10 years

Transport Equipment 6. years

6. Intangible Assets

6.1 Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being
sold separately from the rest of the Board’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal
rights. They are recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or
service potential be provided to, the Board and where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets that meet the recognition criteria are capitalised when they are capable of being

used in a Board’s activities for more than one yéar and they have a cost of at least £5,000.
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Note 1. Accounting Policies (continued)

The main classes of intangible assets recognised are:
1. Software

2. Software Licences

3. Websites

Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated:

® The project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset
for sale or use;

e The Board intends to complete the asset and sell or use it;

e The Board has the ability to sell or use the asset;

e How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivéry benefits eg
the presence of a market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the
usefulness of the asset; .

e Adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the Board to complete the
development and sell or use the asset; and

e The Board can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.
Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits.

Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, eg an operating system, is capitalised as part
of the relevant item of plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of

hardware, eg application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.

Software Licences
Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible fixed assets where expenditure of

at least £5,000 is incurred.

Websites

Websites are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or
service potential be provided to, the Board; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably;
and where the cost is at least £5,000.
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Note 1. Accounting Policies (continued)
6.2 Measurement

Valuation
Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to
create, produce and prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner

intended by management.

Subsequently intangible assets that are not held for their service potential (ie assets held for sale),
including operational assets which are surplus to requirements where there are no restrictions on
disposal which would prevent access to the market, are measured at fair value. Where no active
market exists, the intangible asset is revalued, using indices or some suitable model, to the lower of
depreciated replacement cost and value in use where the asset is income generating. Where there is
no value in use, the intangible asset is valued using depreciated replacement cost. These measures

are a proxy for fair value.
Revaluation and impairment

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except
where, and to the extent that, they reverse an impairment previously recognised in the SoCNE, in
which case they are recognised in income. Permanent decreases in asset values and impairments are
charged gross to the SOCNE. Any related balance on the revaluation reserve is transferred to the
General Fund. Temporary decreases in asset values or impafrments are charged to the revaluation
reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset concerned, and thereafter are
charged to the SoCNE.

6.3 Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised to their estimated residual value over their remaining useful
economic lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery

benefits.

Amortisation is charged to the SOCNE on each main class of intangible asset as follows:

1) Software is amortised over their expected useful life.
2) Other intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful life.
3) No amortisation is charged on assets under development.

Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis.
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Note 1. Accounting Policies (continued)

The following asset lives have been used:

Asset Category/ Component Useful Life
Websites . Maximum 5 years
Information Technology Software Range from 5 years to 20 years*

Life of licence or 5 years whichever is the

Software licences
lower

* Within information Technology Software is the Turas digital platform which is an unchanging,
technical environment which can hold a limitless number of applications. Although the applications
and data will change and develop to support rapidly changing business needs, the platform will
remain unchanging and constant. As a consequence, this asset has been given an indefinite asset life
and will be subject to annual impairment review.

7. Sale of Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Disposal of non-current assets is accounted for as a reduction to the value of assets equal to the net
book value of the assets disposed. When set against any sales proceeds, the resulting gain or loss on -

dispoéal will be recorded in the SoCNE.
8. Leasing

Operating Leases
Where a lease is regarded as an operating lease, the rentals are charged to expenditure on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added to the lease

rentals and offset against the payments over the life of the lease.

Leases of Land and Buildings A
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building
component and the classification for each is assessed separately. Leased land is treated as an

operating lease unless title to the land is expected to transfer.
9. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assets that are su'bject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impafrment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Where an asset is not held for the purpose of generating cash flows, value in use is
assumed to equal the cost of replacing the service potential provided by the asset, unless there has
been a reduction in service potenti>al. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped

at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
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Note 1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Non-financial assets that suffer impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment.
~ Impairment losses charged to the SOCNE are deducted from future operating costs to the extent that

they are identified as being reversed in subsequent revaluations.

10. General Fund Receivables and Payables

Where the Board has a positive net cash book balance at the year end, a corresponding creditor is
created and the general fund debited with the same amount to indicate that this cash is repayable to
the SGHSCD. Where the Health Board has a net overdrawn cash position at the year end, a -
co‘rresponding debtor is created and the general fund credited with the samé amount to indicate
that additional cash is to be drawn down from the SGHSCD. .

11. Losses and Special Payments

Operating expenditure includes certain losses which would have been made good through insurance
cover had the NHS not been bearing its own risks. Had the NHS provided insurance cover, the

insurance premiums would have been included as normal revenue expenditure.
12. Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the year in which the service is
received from employees. The cost of annual leave and flexible working time entitlement earned but
not taken by employees at the end of the year is recognised in the financial statements to the extent

that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following year.

Pension Costs

The Board participates in the NHS Superannuation Scheme (Scotland). This scheme is an unfunded
statutory pension scheme with benefits underwritten by the UK Government. The scheme is '
financed by payments from employers and those current employees who are members of the
scheme and paying contributions at progressively higher marginal rates based on pensionable pay as
specified in the regulations. The Board is unable to identify its share of the underlying notional
assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore accounts for
the scheme as if it were defined contribution scheme, as required by 1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’. As
a result, the amount charged to the SOCNE represents the Board’s employer contributions payable to
the scheme in respect of the year. The contributions deducted from employees are reflected in the
gross salaries charged and are similarly remitted to the Exchequer. The pension cost is assessed
every four years by the Government Actuary and this valuation determines the rate of contributions
required. The most recent actuarial valuation is published by the Scottish Public Pensions Agency

and is available on their website.
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Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except
where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional cost is
charged to the SOCNE at the time the Board commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the

method of payment.

13. Clinical and Medical Negligence Costs

Employing health bodies in Scotland are responsible for meeting medical negligence costs up to a
threshold per claim. Costs above this threshold are reimbursed to Boards from a central fund held as
part of the Clinical Negligence and Other Risks Indemnity Scheme (CNORIS) by the Scottish

Government.

NHS Education for Scotland provide for all claims notified to the NHS Central Legal Office according
to the value of the claim and the probability of settlement. Claims assessed as ‘Category 3’ are
deemed most likely and provided for in full, those in ‘Category 2’ as 50% of the claim and those in
’Category 1’ as nil. The balance of the value of claims not provided for is disclosed as a contingent
liability. This procedure is intended to-estimate the amount considered to be the liability in respect of
any claims outstanding and which will be recoverable from the CNORIS in the event of payment by an
individual health board. The corresponding recovery in respect of amounts provided for is recorded
‘as a debtor and that in respect of amounts disclosed as contingent liabilities are disclosed as

contingent assets.

NES also provides for its liability from participating in the scheme. The CNORIS scheme provision
recognisés the Board’s respective share of the total liability of NHSScotland as advised by the Scottish
Government and based on information prepared by NHS Boards and the Central Legal Office. The
movement in the proVisions between financial years is matched by a corresponding adjustment in

AME provision and is classified as non-core expenditure.
14, Related Party Transactions

Material related party transactions will be disclosed in a note to the accounts in line with the
requirements of IAS 24. Trading figures with other NHS bodies are disclosed in Note 17.

15. Value Added Tax (VAT)

Most of the activities of the Board are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not
apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is

charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
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16. Provisions

The Board provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount at the
Statement of Financial Position date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated cash

flows are discounted using the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury.
17. Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by
one or more future events not wholly within the Board’s control) are not recognised as assets, but

are disclosed in a note to the accounts where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in a note to the accounts, unless the

probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are defined as:

e possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or

e present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of
economic benefits will arise or for whicH the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with

sufficient reliability.
18. Corresponding Amounts
Corresponding amounts are shown for the primary statements and notes to the financial statements.
Where the corresponding amounts are not directly comparable with the amount to be shown in
respect of the current financial year, IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, requires that they
should be adjusted and the basis for adjustment disclosed in a note to the financial statements.

19. Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

Business model
The Board’s business model refers to how it manages financial assets in order to generate cash flows

and is determined at a level which reflects how groups of financial assets are managed to achieve a

business objective, rather than assessment of individual instruments.
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Classification

When the Board first recognises a financial asset, it classifies it based on its business model for
managing.the asset and the asset’s contractual flow characteristics. The Board classifies its financial
assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss; amortised cost, and fair value
through other comprehensive income.  The default basis for financial assets is to be held at fair
value through profit or loss, although alternative treatment may be designated where receivables are
held to collect principal and interest arid/or for sale.

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This is the default basis for financial assets.

b) Financial assets held at amortised cost

A financial asset may be held at amortised cost where both of the following c(o.ndi'tions are met:
e The financial asset is held within a business model where the objectivé is to collect contractual
cash flows; and
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and related interest.

c) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset may be held at fair value through other comprehensive income where both of the
following conditions are met:
e The financial asset is held within a business model where the objective is to collect contractual
cash flows and sell the asset; and
¢ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are sdlelyv payments of
principal and related interest.

‘Impairment of financial assets
Provisions for impairment of financial assets are made on the basis of expected credit losses. The Board
recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets and this is recognised in other

comprehensive income, rather than reducing the carrying amount of the asset in the Statement of
Financial Position.

Lifetime expected credit losses are recognised and applied to financial assets by the Board where there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since the asset’s initial recognition. Where the Board does
not hold reasonable and supportable information to measure I|fet|me expected credit losses on an
individual instrument basis, the losses are recognised on a coIIectlve basis which considers
comprehensive credit risk information.

Recognition and Measurement
Financial assets are recognised when the Board becomes party to the contractual provisions of the

financial instrument.
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Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
or have been transferred and the Board has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value are presented in the Statement of

Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

b) Financial assets held at amortised cost

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. This is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the asset.

Financial Liabilities

Classification
The Board classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, and amortised cost. The Board classifies all financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost,
unless:
e These are measured at fair value on a portfolio basis in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy;
° They contain embedded derivatives; and/or
e It eliminates or reduces ‘accounting mismatch’ that would otherwise arise from
measurement or recognition on an amortised cost basis.

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise derivatives. Liabilities in this
category are classified as current liabilities. The Board does not trade in derivatives and does
not apply hedge accounting. ; t

b) Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost are disclosed in current liabilities, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the Statement of Financial Position date. These are
classified as non-current liabilities. The Board’s other financial liabilities comprise of trade
and other payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Board becomes party to the contractual provisions of the

financial instrument.
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A financial liability is removed from the Statement of Financial Position when it is extinguished, that

is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement,

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at
fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value are presented in the SoCNE.

b) Financial liabilities held at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

20. Segmental Reporting

Total operatihg segments are reported in a manner consistent with the iﬁternal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. This has been identified as the Chief Executive supported by
the Executive team. The Executive team consists of all Executive Directors and a number of other

senior staff and meets fortnightly.

The total Operating segments will agree to the totals of expenditure and income shown in Notes 3 -7,
however, the analysis of these notes will reflect the following categorisations — Pay costs; Direct

Educational support costs; Educational Infrastructure costs; and NES Infrastructure costs.

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, and cash balances held by the Government Banking
Service and balances held in commercial bank accounts. Where the Government Banking Service is

using Royal Bank of Scotland Group to provide the banking services, funds held in these accounts

should not be classed as commercial bank balances.
22, Foreign Exchange
The functional and presentational currencies of the Board are sterling.

A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional currency at

the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction.
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23. Key Sources of Judgement and Estimation Uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Board makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Board makes judgements in
applying accounting policies. The estimates, assumptions and judgements that have a significant risk
of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the financial

statements within the next financial year are addressed below.

Other (Dilapidations) Provision: The provision for costs related to the expiry of leases up to and

including 2023 is based on a dilapidation assessment carried out at the start of each lease.

Creditors: Within creditors there is an accrual for annual leave and flexi Leave of £383k (2018:
£585k). This calculation was based on the actual leave returns received from staff. An average
number of hours by grade was extrapolated from these returns and applied to those staff who did
not submit a return. The hours multiplied by actual salary costs gave a total anticipated cost.
included in the annual leave accrual is £175k (2018: £125k) for GP Trainees calculated as 8.9 hours
leave for each trainee in post at 31 March. This is on a par with the average annual leave outstanding
for other NES staff. If the average amount of annual and flexi leave estimated to be outstanding for
each individual moved by 5%, the overall accAruaI requirediwould increase / decrease by £10k. In
addition, an accrual of £1,077k (2018: £559k) has been included in respect of payments relating to staff

on fixed term contracts.
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2018 2019

£'000

857
355
0

1,212

(1,585)

(1,585)

(941)
(304)
76
361

(808)

(717)

(717)

(3,110)

2a. Adjustments for non cash transactions

Depreciation
Amortisation
Impairments on Intangible assets charged to SoCNE

Total expenditure not paid in cash

2bh. Movements in working capital

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
‘Due within one year

Net (increase)/decrease

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Due within one year

Due after more than one year

Less: property, plant & equipment included in above
Less: General Fund creditor included in above

Total

Net increase /(decrease)
PROVISIONS

Statement of Financial Position
Total

Net decrease

Net movement
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Note

10

12

12

11

13a

CFS

£'000

825

353

60
1,238
Opening Closing
Balances  Balances
£'000 £'000
5,266 3,365
1,901

17,187 19,044
1,547 1,422
(257) 9
(271)  (195)
18,206 20,280
2,074

4,300 4,215
4,300 4,215
(85)
3,890
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Note 3. Staff Expenditure

2018 2019

restated
£'000 £'000
1,121 Medical Training Fellowships 894
2,340 Medical Training Programme Directors 2,424
30,598 Medical GP Trainees (employed by NES)* 55,365
2,583 Medical Professional Development 3,031
1,268 Medical Quality Management ' ‘ 977
4,821 Medical Strategic Planning & Directorate Support 5,194
2,068 Medical Training Programme Management 2,048
123 Healthcare Science ; 131
5,373 Dental | 5,461
2,253 Psychology ‘ 2,407
64 Pharmacy 270
4,641 Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals 4,469
372 Knowledge Services 397
1,535 Leadership & Admin Workforce Development 2,204
279 Optometry : 222
3,636 Internal Governance, Planning, Commissioning & Systems 3,711
366 Property & Facilities Management Expenditure 376
1,858 Workforce Support 1,507
1,576 Digital Services : 1,991
0 NES Digital Service (NDS) 419
1,306 Corporate Expenditure 2,033
68,181 Total Staff Expenditure
Reconciliation of Staff Expenditure to Staff Report
66,885 "Total Pay per Staff Report b) on page 49
(1,640) Less capitalised salaries in Staff Report, not in Note 3
2,936 Add back Outward Secondees as they are in Note 7

68,181
1. Medical GP Trainees include £23,982k for the Lead Employer Programme for which NES was an Early Adopter in August

Total Staff Expenditure

2017 and the Programme was expanded in August 2018. These costs are offset by the income received from Placement

Boards/reflected in Note 7.

The prior year comparative figures have some reallocations between lines compared to the 2017/18 financial statements

however the note total remains the same.
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2018 2019 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000
Undergraduate expenditure
77,948 Medical ACT* 81,045
15,741 Dental ACT 15,723
.0 Pharmacy ACT 2,342
93,689 Total undergraduate expenditure 99,110
Postgraduate expenditure
24,519 Medical Foundation 1 Trainees 25,687
29,068 Medical Foundation 2 Trainees 30,627
152,576 Medical Core/Specialty Trainees 158,504
- 1,066 Medical Training Fellowships 990
6,301 Medical GP Trainee Support Expenditure’ 7,384
213,530 Total Medical Training Grades 223,192
4,577 Dental training grades 4,974
9,838 Dental GP Trainees 9,472
14,415 Total Dental Training Grades 14,446
7,852 Clinical Psychology 8,177
4,734 Pre-reg Pharmacy Trainees 5,456
1,891 Healthcare Science 1,990
242,422 Total Postgraduate Expenditure 253,261

336,111 Total Direct Educational Non Pay Expenditure

Although classified as non pay expenditure for NES, the majority of the above figures will fund the salary costs of clinical

staff employed by other organisations

1. Medical ACT includes the cost of supporting the expansion of undergraduate numbers including widening access to
students and bursary expenditure associated with the graduate entry programme ScotGEM, launched in 2017.
2. Medical GP Trainee Support Expenditure includes GP Trainer Grants and the total grant payments of £1,720k (2018:

£1,200k) made to GP Trainees who take up a post in a remote or hard to fill location.
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Note 5. Other Educational Infrastructure Support - Non Pay Expenditure

2018 2019

restated
£'000 £'000
3,783 Medical Professional Development 4,441
1,051 Medical Quality Management 1,102
408 Medical Strategic Planning & Directorate Support 518
2,926 Medical Training Programme Management’ 2,978
372 Healthcare Science | 376
10,071 Dental 9,862
7,244 Psychology 3 8,330
2,337 Pharmacy , 2,282
6,895 Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals 7,514
5,371 Knowledge Services’ 3,346
637 Optometry ' 771
1,218 NHS Workforce Support 1,228
715 Digital Systems Development & Support™ ? 1,587
0 NES Digital Services (NDS) 208

Total Other Educational Support Non Pay Expenditure

The above table includes expenditure relating to the Education and training support NES provides across different
NHSScotland staff groups. Although classified as non pay expenditure for NES, some of the figures fund the salary costs of
clinical and non-clinical staff employed by other organisations. This is funded through formal provisions delivered in
Universities, Dental Schools, Teach & Treat centres, in practice and through the provision of an eLibrary service to provide
access to training materials. Additionally, it includes expenditure relating to the provision of support for the development
of staff through Leadership and Management Programmes, approved study leave, CPD and Fellowships in a non-NHS

setting.

Notes:
1. A reallocation of costs has been applied to the prior year comparative figures between Medical Training Programme
Management and Digital Systems Development and Support, however the ndte total remains the same as reported in
the financial statements as at 31 March 2018. .
2. Knowledge Services in 2017/18 includes £1,628k of VAT payable on e-subscriptions relating to earlier years.
3. Digital Systems and support includes £792k of Transformation Funding
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Note 6. NES Infrastructure Non Pay Expenditure

2018 2019
£'000 £'000
375 Internal Governance, Planning, Commissioning & Systems 303
4,033 . Property & Facilities Management ' 4,019
161 Workforce Support B 144
1,057  Digital Services 1,097
1,212 Depreciation and Amortisation 1,178
289 Corporate , 213
(699) Movement on Provisions - Annually Managed Expenditure " (207)
58 External Auditor's Remuneration - Statutory Audit Fee 58

0 Impairment of Assets - Annually Managed Expenditure 60
6,486 Total NES Infrastructure Non Pay expenditure 6,865

7. Other Operating Income

£'000 £'000
2,637 NHS Scotland bodies 25,139
381 NHS Non-Scottish bodies 389
651 SGHSCD 812
727 License fees for E Portfolio system 756
299  GPCPD 3
672 Dental CPD , 480
189 Scottish Patient Safety Programme Fellowship Fees ‘ 219
2,358 . Overseas ACT Levy - Medical 4,265
523 Overseas ACT Levy - Dental . 740
426 Other Income 804
8,863 Total Other Operating Income 33,925

Income from NHSScotland bodies includes recharges of £23,982k for the Lead Employer Programme for which NES was an

Early Adopter in August 2017 and the Programme was expanded in August 2018.
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8. Segmental Analysis

Segmental information as required under IFRS has been reported for each strategic business area.

Other Health

Medical NMAHP Professionals Digital Corporate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 " £'000 £'000 £'000
Net operating expenditure 2019 363,934 44,246 11,996 22,365 9,384 13,460 465,385
346,312 44,518 11,612 20,612 7,234 14,655 444,94

Net operating expenditure 2018

In the above Other Health Professionals includes Optometry, Healthcare Science and Psychology; Digital
includes the cost of all digital infrastructure and NDS; and Corporate includes Finance and Procurement,
Workforce and Planning and Corporate Resources. Corporate Resources includes Property and Facilities

Management.

NES considers the Chief Executive, as Accountable Officer, to be the Chief Operating Decision Maker.
The segments reported in the annual accounts reflect the activities of NES in a way which is relevant
to our many stakeholders including our funding body, the Scottish Government, and specifically,
within the Scottish Government, the Chief Dental Officer, the Chief Nursing Officer and the Chief

. Medical Officer.

The annual accounts presented to the Executive Team, the Audit Committee and the Board are full IFRS
accounts. Throughout the year, the financial information presented to the Executive Team, the Finance
and Performance Management Committee and the Board are accruals based management accounts.
This presentation is adopted as, due to the nature of NES activities, the focus of performance
management is oh the control of expenditure and identification of output and outcomes. The
preliminary year-end financial information presented in April/May to these groups is ‘in draft’ until ‘the

audited annual accounts are presented in June.
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Note 9. a) Intangible Fixed Assets — Current Year

Assets

under

Software develop-

Current Year licenses Software Websites ment
£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation:

Asat 1 April 2018 45 7,247 677
Additions 0 2,464 0
Disposals

At 31st March 2019

=l O O O

Amortisation:

As at 1 April 2018 9 1,817 677 0 2,503
Provided during the year 3 350 0 0 353
Impairment charge 0 60 0 0 60
Disposals 0 0

At 31 March 2019 0

Net Book Value at 31 March
2018

Net Book Value at 31 March
2019

Asset financing:

Owned

Net book value at 31 March
2019
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" Note 9. a) Intangible Fixed Assets — Prior Year

Assets
under
Software develop-
Prior Year licenses Software Websites ment
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation:
As at 1st April 2017 45 5,999 898 0 6,942
Additions 0 1,640 0 0 1,640
Disposals 0
At 31 March 2018 (1]

Amortisation:

As at 1st April 2017 6 2,761

Provided during the year 3 352 0 ;355
0

0
0
Disposals 392 221 0 613
Net book value at 31 March
2017

1,857 898

39 4,142 0 0 4,181

Net book value at 31 March
2018

Asset financing:

Owned
Net book value at 31 March
2018
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Note 9.b) Property Plant and Equipment — Current Year

Transport Plant & Information Furniture Assets under
ipment machiner oy & fittings Construction
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation:

As at 1 April 2018 243 694 ‘ 2,884 5,298 90 9,209
Additions 258 0 67 0 28 "~ 353
Transfers 90 0 0 0 (90) 0

Disposals
At 31st March 2019

Depreciation:

Asat 1 April 2018 - 225 576 2,350 2,423 5,574
Provided during the year 41 55 151 578 825
Disposals 0 0 (171) 0

Impairment charge 0 0 0 0
At 31st March 2019

=« O O O O
=
~I
=

Net book value at 31 March

1 8 2,87 0 3,635
2018 8 11 534 875 9 f

Net Book Value at 31 March
2019

Net book value at 31 March
2019

450 2,297
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Note 9. b) Property Plant and Equipment - Prior Year

Transport Plant & Information Furniture Assets under

Prior Year ipment machinery technology & fittings Construction Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000|

Cost or valuation:
As at 1st April 2017 243 675 2,902 5,293 8 9,121
Additions 0 11 257 5 90 363
Transfers 0 8 0. 0 (8) 0
Disposals 0 0 275 0 0 275
At 31 March 2018 243 694 2,884 5,298 90 9,209
Depreciation:
As at 1st April 2017 217 507 2,422 1,846 0 4,992
Provided during the year 8 69 203 577 0 857
Disposals 0 0
At 31 March 2018 (0]
2::7book value at 31 March 2% 168 480 3,447 3 .4’129

Net book value at 31 March

534 2,875
2018

Asset financing:
Owned 18 118 534 2,875 3,635

Net book value at 31 March

18 534 2,875
2018
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Note 10. Trade and Other Receivables

Receivables due within one year:

NHSScotland
74 . SGHSCD : o 54
140 Boards 367
214 Total NHSScotland receivables 421
9% NHS non-Scottish bodies ' 96
63 VAT recoverable : 133
2,615 Prepayments1 407
16 Accrued income 654
0 Reimbursement of provisions (CNORIS) 125
2,264 Other receivables 1,529

Total receivables due within one year

The total receivables figure above includes a provision for impairments of

WGA Classification:

NHSScotland

Central Government bodies

Balances with NHS bodies in England and Wales
Balances with bodies external to Government

Trade Receivables that are less than 3 months past their due date are not considered impaired. As at 31 March
2019, receivables with a carrying value of £1,602,005 (2018: £146,849) were past their date but not impaired.
The ageing of receivables that are past due but not impaired. The ageing of recevables that are past due but
not impaired is as follows:

Up to 3 months past due

3 to 6 months past due
Over 6 months past due
Total Trade Receivables past due but not impaired

Concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base comprising of large and unrelated/government
bodies. Due to this, management believe that there is no future credit risk provision required in excess of the
normal provision for doubtful trade receivables. The credit quality of trade receivables that are are neither
past due nor impaired is assessed by reference to external credit ratings where available. Where no external
credit rating is available, historical information about counterparty default rates is used.
Trade Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are shown by their

credit risk below:

Counterparties with external credit ratings
2,367 A 154
Counterparties with no external credit rating
19 New customers 115
7 ~ Existing customers with no defaults in the past 0

0 Existing customers with some defaults in the past 0
2,393 Total neither past due nor impaired 269
The value of debt write-off in the year was £253 (2018: £486). The carrying amount of receivables are

denominated in Great British Pounds.

1. Prepayments in 2017/18 included £2.2m relating to elibrary subscriptions for 2018/19
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Note 11. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At
Cash 31 March

Current Year
£'000 £'000 £7000
Government Banking Service account balance 254 (73) 181
Cash at bank and in hand 17 3 14

Total cash and cash equivalents (76)

Cash 31 March

Prior Year Flow 2018
£'000 £7000 £'000
Government Banking Service account balance 625 (371) 254

7 10 17

Cash at bank and in hand
Total cash and cash equivalents 632 (361) 271
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Note 12. Trade and Other Payables

Payables due within one year

NHSScotland

4,201  Boards : 5,429
4,201  Total NHSScotland payables 5,429
7 NHS Non-Scottish bodies 316
271  Amounts payable to General Fund 195
1,757  Trade payables 515
7,102  Accruals 7,804
478  Deferred income 496
1,950 Income tax and social security1 2,541
1,041  Superannuation® 1,331
383 Holiday pay accrual 401

Other payables

17,187 Total Trade and Other Payables due within one year 19,044

Payables due after more than one year
1,547  Other payables 1,422

1,547 Total Trade and Other Payables after more than one year 1,422

18,734 Total Trade and Other Payables 20,466

£'000 WGA Classification

4,201 NHS Scotland 5,429
3,004 Central Government Bodies 3,872
7 Balances with NHS Bodies in England and Wales 316

11,522 Balances with bodies external to Government 10,849
18,734 Total Trade and Other Payables 20,466

The carrying amount of receivables are denominated in Great British Pounds.

1. Income tax, social security and superannuation amounts have increased by £881k due to the increased number of staff

on the payroll from the Lead Employer Programme
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Note 13. a) Provisions

Clinical legal Participation

Current Year claims in CNORIS Dilapidations
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 April 2018 13 74 4,213 0 4,300
Arising during the year 155 36 (229) 0 (38)
Utilised during the year (3) (11) 0 0 (14)
Unwinding of discount 0 0 0 0 0
0

Reversed unutilised 8 25 0 (33
At 31 March 2019 157 74 3,984 0 4,215
The amounts shown above are stated gross and the amount of any expected reimbursements are
separately disclosed as receivables in Note 10.

Expected timing of Clinical legal Participation
discounted cashflows claims in CNORIS Dilapidations
£'000 £'000 £'000

Payable in one year 157 30 0 187
Payable between 2 -5 years 0 38 3,984
Payable between 6 - 10 years
Thereafter

At 31 March 2019

Clinical legal Participation

Prior Year claims in CNORIS Dilapidations

£'000 £'000 £'000 £/000 £'000
At 1 April 2017 75 77 4,306 559 5,017
Arising during the year 6 12 0 0 18
Utilised during the year (18) (7) 0 (559) (584)
Unwinding of discount 0 0 . (93) 0 (93)
Reversed unutilised 50 - {8) 0 0 58

At 31 March 2018 4,213 4,300

Expected timing of Clinical legal Participation
discounted cashflows claims in CNORIS Dilapidations
£'000

Payable in one year 13 9 0
Payable between 2 - 5 years 0 0 2,437
Payable between 6 - 10 years 0 0 1,776

Thereafter
At 31 March 2018

« O O O O
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Note 13. b) Clinical Negligence and Other Risks Indemnity Scheme (CNORIS)

2018 2019
£'000 : : Note £'000

13 Pravision recognising individual claims against the Board at 31 March 13a 157

0 Associated CNORIS receivable for individual claims at 31 March : (125)

74 Provision recognising the Board's' liability from participating in the 13 24
scheme at 31 March

87 Net total provision relating to CNORIS at 31 March 106

CNORIS has been in operation since 2000. Participation in the scheme is mandatory for all NHS
boards in Scotland. The scheme allows for risk pooling of legal claims in relation to clinical
negligence and other risks and works in a similar manner to an insurance scheme. CNORIS has an
agreed threshold of £25k and any claims with a value less than this are met directly from within
Boards’ own budgets. If a claim is greater than £25k and is settled then the Board is reimbursed by
the scheme for the value of the settlement, less a £25k “excess” fee. The scheme allows for the risk
associated with a'ny large or late in the financial year legal claims to be managed and reduces the

level of volatility that individual boards are exposed to.

When a legal claim is made against an individual Board, the Board assesses whether a provision or
contingent liability for that legal claim is required. If a provision is required then the Board also
creates an associated receivable recognising reimbursement from the scheme if the legal claim
settles, provided the provision for a claim exceeds £25k. The provision and associated receivable is

shown in separate lines above.

Additionally, as a result of participation in the scheme NHS Boards contribute to the CNORIS pool
each financial year at a pre-agreed contribution rate based on the risks associated with their
individual Board. Boards also recognise that there is a requirement to make contributions to the
scheme in future years. Therefore, a second provision that recognises the Board’s share of the total
CNORIS liability of NHSScotland has been made and this is reflected in the table above.

Therefore, there are two related but distinct provisions required as a result of participation in the
scheme. Clinical and Medical Legal £157k relates to claims against NES and the participation in
CNORIS £74k relates to the NES share of the total NHSScotland liability. The annual cost of
participating in the CNORIS scheme is an expenditure whi,ch’ is charged to the SoCNE.

Further information on the scheme can be found at https://clo.scot.nhs.uk/our-services/cnoris.aspx
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Note 14. Commitments Under Lease

Operating Leases

Total future minimum lease payments under operating leases are given in the table below for each of

the following periods:

g leases comprise:

Buildings
1,672 Not later than one year 1,796
1,672 Later than one year, not later than 2 years 1,796
4,101 Later than two years, not later than five years 4,334
1,056 Later than five years | 1,472

Other

13  Notlater than one year 12
3  Llaterthan oneyear, notlater than 2 years 8
0 Later than two years, not later than five years 16

16 Total Other

Amounts charged to operating expenditure in the year were:

Hire of equipment (including vehicles)

Other operating leases

Total

The lease for Westport was extended in the year to run until 2026 therefore there is an increase in the long

term lease commitments.

15. Pension Costs

National Health Service Superannuation Scheme

NHS Education for Scotland participates in the NHS Pension Scheme (Scotland). The scheme is an
unfunded statutory public service pension scheme with benefits underwritten by the UK
Government. The scheme is financed by payments from employers and from those current
employees who are members of the scheme and paying contributions at progressively higher
marginal rates based on pensionable pay, as specified in the regulations. The rate of employer

contributions is set with reference to a funding valuation undertaken by the scheme actuary. The

92



NHS Education for Scotland Annual Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Note 15. Pension Costs (continued)

last four-yearly valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2012. The next valuation will be based on

scheme data as at 31 March 2016 and this will set contribution rates from 1 April 2019.

NHS Education for Scotland has no liability for other employers obligations to the multi-employer
scheme. As the scheme is unfunded there can be no deficit or surplus to distribute on the wind-up of

the scheme or withdrawal from the scheme.

The scheme is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit scheme. It is accepted that the scheme
can be treated for accounting purposes as a defined contribution scheme in circumstances where
NHS Education for Scotland is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the
scheme. The employer contribution rate for the period from 1 April 2015 was 14.9% of pensionable
pay. While the employee rate applied is a variable it will provide an actuarial yield of 9.8% of

pensionable pay.

At the last valuation, a shortfall of £1.4 billion was identified in the notional fund which will be repaid
by a supplementary rate of 2.6% 6f employer’s pension contributions for fifteen years from 1 April
2015. This contribution is included in the 14.9% employer’s contribution rate. NHS Education for
Scotland’s level of participation in the scheme is 0.81% based on the proportion of employer

contributions paid in 2017/18.

The current NHS Pension Scheme (Scotland) 2015

From 1 April 2015, the NHS Pension Scheme (Scotland) 2015 was introduced. This scheme is a Career
Average Re-valued Earnings (CARE) scheme. Members will accrue 1/54 of their pay as pension for
each year they are a member of the scheme. The accrued pension is re-valued each year at an above
inflation rate to maintain its buying power. This is currently 1.5% above increases to the Consumer
Prices Index (CPI). This continues until the member leaves the scheme or retires.rln 2018/19
members paid tiered contribution rates ranging from 5.2% to 14.7% of pensionable earnings. The
normal retirement age is the same as the State Pension age. Members can take their benefits earlier

but there will be a deduction for early payment.

The previous NHS Superannuation Scheme (Scotland) Section 1995 and Section 2008

This scheme closed to new joiners on 31 March 2015 but any benefits earned in either NHS 1995 or
NHS 2008 sections are protected and will be paid at the section’s normal pension age using final
pensionable pay when members leave or retire. Some members who were close to retirement when
~the NHS 2015 scheme launched will continue to earn benefits in their current section. This may affect
members who were paying into the scheme on 1 April 2012 and were within 10 yeafs of their normal
retirement age. Some members who were close to retirement but did not qualify for full protection

will remain in their current section beyond 1 April 2015 and join the 2015 scheme at a later date.
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Note 15. Pension Costs (continued)
All other members automatically joined the NHS 2015 scheme on 1 April 2015.

Further information is available on the Scottish Public Pensions Agency (SPPA) web site at

www.sppa.gov.uk

National Employment Savings Trust (NEST)

The Pensions Act 2008 and 2011 automatic enrolment regulations required all employers to enrol
workers meeting certain criteria into a pension scheme and pay contributions toward their
retirement. For those staff not entitled to join the NHS Superannuation Scheme (Scotland), NES
utilised an alternative pension scheme called NEST to fulfil its Automatic Enrolment obligations.

NEST is a defined contribution pension scheme established by law to support the introduction of
automatic enrolment. Contributions are taken from qualifying earnings, which are currently from
£6,032 up to £46,350, but will be reviewed every year by the government. The initial employee
contribution was 1% of qualifying earnings, with an employer contribution of 1%. This will increase in
stages to meet levels set by government.

Date Employee Employer ; Total Contribution
Contribution Contribution

1st March 2013 1% 1% 2%

1st April 2018 3% 2% 5%

1st April 2019 5% 3% 8%

Pension members can chose to let NEST manage their retirement fund or can take control
themselves and alter contribution levels and switch between different funds. If pension members
leave NES they can continue to pay into NEST.

NEST Pension members can take money out of NEST at any time from age 55. If suffering from
serious ill health or incapable of working due to illness members can request to take money out of
NEST early. They can take the entire retirement fund as cash, use it to buy a retirement income or a
combination. Additionally members can transfer their NEST retirement fund to another scheme.

NEST is run by NEST Corporation, a trustee body which is a non-departmental public body operating
at arm’s length from government and is accountable to Parliament through the Department for Work
and Pensions.
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Note 16. Financial Instruments

a) Financial Instruments by Category

Financial Assets Loans and
At 31 March 2019: Receivables
£'000 £'000
Assets per Statement of Financial Position
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments, 2279 2279

reimbursements of provisions and VAT recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents ‘ 195 195

2,474 2,474

Financial Assets Loans and
At 31 March 2018: receivables

Assets per Statement of Financial Position

Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments,
-lreimbursements of provisions and VAT recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

645 p 645

Other
Financial Liabilities financial
At 31 March 2019: liabilities

£'000 £'000
Liabilities per Statement of Financial Position
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities
(VAT, income tax, and social security), deferred income 10,669 10,669
and superannuation : '

10,669 10,669

ter

Financial Liabilities financial
At 31 March 2018: liabilities Total
£'000 £'000

Liabilities per Statement of Financial Position
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities
(VAT, income tax, and social security), deferred income 11,064 11,064

and superannuation
11,064 11,064
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Note 16. Financial Instruments {continued)

b) Financial Risk Factors

NES's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

e Creditrisk the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due.

¢ Liquidity risk the possibility that NES might not have funds available to meet its commitments
to make payments.

o  Market risk the possibility that financial loss might arise as a result of changes in such

measures as interest rates, stock market movements or foreign exchange rates.

Because of the largely non-trading nature of its activities and the way in which Government departments are

financed, NES‘is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.

The Board provides written principles for overall risk management. The risks associated with the ongoing

business of NES and the achievement of its strategic and operational aims are managed through a system of
risk registers held at different levels throughout the organisation. These provide a mechanism through which
risk management information can be gathered, reported on and action formulated across NES. This ensures
that potential threats to, and challenges within systems are identified at strategic and operational levels, and

risk assessment of their impact is undertaken in conjunction with relevant parties.

16b (i) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and other institutions, as well as credit

exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions.
For banks and other institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of 'A’ are accepted.

Customers are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors, with
individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by
NES.

The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and no losses are expected from non-

performance by any counterparties in relation to deposits.

16b (ii) Liquidity Risk

The Scottish Parliament makes provision for the use of resources by NES for revenue and capital purposes
in a Budget Act for each financial year. Resources and accruing resources may be used only for the
purposes specified and up to the amounts specified in the Budget Act. The Act also specifies an overall cash

authorisation to operate for the financial year. NES is therefore not exposed to significant liquidity risks.
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Note 16. Financial Instruments (continued)
16b (ii) Liquidity Risk (continued)

The table below analyses the financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Position to contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as
the impact of discounting is not significant. . |

Between 1 Between
Less than

£'000

At 31 March 2019:

Trade and other payables excluding statutory
liabilities (VAT, income tax, and social security),
deferred income and superannuation

Less than
1 year

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2018:

Trade and other payables excluding statutory
liabilities (VAT, income tax, and social security), 9,517 450 1,318 83
deferred income and superannuation

16b (iii) Market Risk

NES has no powers to borrow or invest surplus funds. Financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-

day operational activities and are not held to manage the risks facing NES in undertaking its activities.
a) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
NES has no significant interest bearing assets or liabilities and as such income and expenditure cash

flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

b) Foreign Currency Risk

NES is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

c) Price risk

NES is not exposed to equity security price risk.
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16. Financial Instruments (continued)

16b (iv) Fair Value Estimation

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents is assumed to approximate their fair value.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate

their fair value.

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual

cash flows at the current HM Treasury interest rate that is available for similar financial instruments.

Note 17. Related Party Transactions

There were no material related party transactions during the year, other than those with other government
departments and other central government bodies. NES spent £355.7 million with other NHSScotland
Boards and had income of £2.5 million from other NHSScotland Boards.

Executive and Non-Executive Board members had no material interests in contracts or potential contracts
with the organisation.

Note 18. Capital Commitments

The Board has no capital commitments.
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Glossary of Terms

Acronym

Description

Acronym Description

Nursing Midwifery and Allied Health

ACT Additional Cost of Teaching NMAHP .
Professionals
AHP PEL Allied Health Professional Practice PAO Principal Accountable Officer
Education Lead
BMA British Medical Association PCCP Person-Centred Care and Participation.
. : anni d
BNF British National Formulary PDPR Pers‘onal Development Planning and
Review
CAMHS Ch”d. & Adolescent Mental Health PEF Practice Education Facilitator
Services :
CARE Career Average Re-valued Earnings - PFM Property and Facilities Management
CETV Cash Equivalent Transfer Values PFPI Patient Focus Public Involvement
Nursing & Midwifery Care : i,
CHEF HomeEducation Facilitator PoPP. | PsYchoIogy of Parenting Programme
Clinical Negligence and Other Risks o ‘
CNO
RIS (T | Ql Quality Improvement
CPD Continuing Professional Development RRL Revenue Resource Limit
CPI Consumer Prices Index ScotGEM Scotezigraduate Entry Medicine
_ Programme
3 : . -« l
CRL Capital Resoureactimit SGHSCD Scottlsh Government Health and Socia
1 ' Care Directorate
eKSF Electronic Knowledgggnd Skiia SFC Scottish Funding Council
Framework ‘
FReM Financial Reporting Manual SIFS Scottish Improvement Foundation Skills
: ive Net
GP General Practice/Practitioner SoCNE Statem?nt gfi Comprehensivellie
Expenditure
GPhC General Pharmaceutical Council SPFM Scottish Public Finance Manual
HCPC Health and Care Professional Council SRPA Scottish Public Pensions Agency
ICO Information Commissioner’s Office SSSC Scottish Social Services Council
IFRIC lnternatlon‘aI Fmananc'lal Reporting TPD Training Programme Director
Interpretations Committee
IFRS International Financial Reporting UG UnderGraduate
Standards
NDS NES Digital Services VAT Value Added Tax
NES NHS Education for Scotland VT Vocational Training
NEST National Employment Savings Trust WTE Whole Time Equivalent
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This resource may be made available, in full or summary form, in alternative
formats and community languages. Please contact us on 0131 656 3200 or email
altformats@nes.scot.nhs.uk to discuss how we can best meet your requirements.

NHS Education for Scotland
Westport 102

NHS
‘\,d West Port

Education Edinburgh EH3 9DN

for
tel: 0131 656 3200
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www.nes.scot.nhs.uk




